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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Millions of Yen

2023 2022 2021
LT I ¥3,540,319 ¥3,457,890 ¥3,294,890
Loans and bills diSCOUNLEd .........c.vvevirririeiereers et 2,092,111 1,972,040 1,906,882
INVESIMIEIIL SECUTITIES ...ttt e e et e e ereras et e s e s e e e 1,388,202 1,287,683 1,269,941
COMMIMON SLOCK ...ttt ettt 19,598 19,598 19,598
Total L0 T 187,520 198,072 202,746
Tl BRSNS oo B o o o T T IS i v mmane e e ss e asnsasase s 4,324 388 4,310,569 3,813,669
Net income attributable to owners of the parent...........cccocecevvvvienrrene 5,409 5,376 3,615
Nurinberiof tiranches (N ticstigalidated)immmmmsmssmsmsssm st 93 93 93
Number of employees (Nonconsolidated) ............ocovovoriovoiieceeeieee e 1,593 1,558 1,607
TOTAL ASSETS TOTAL EQUITY NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO
Billions of yen Billions of yen OWNERS OF THE PARENT
Millions of yen
4,324
810 R sa76 40
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Note: All graph figures are for the years ended March 31
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A MESSAGE FROM THE MANAGEMENT

A Value-Creating Company That Enhances The Region’S Sus-
tainability

Oita Bank sincerely appreciates the continued patronage of all our
stakeholders.

Since our founding in 1893, Oita Bank has continued to oper-
ate as a regional financial institution built on solid foundations. We
extend our warmest thanks to all our stakeholders for your support
over the years.

This year was the final year of our Medium-Term Management
Plan 2021, which had as its long-term vision to make Oita Bank “a
value-creating company that enhances the region’s sustainability.”
Under our Medium-Term Management Plan 2021, we are “taking up
the challenge of transforming ourselves in preparation for the future”
through the development of fundamental and visionary strategies for
creating value in four areas - the environment, society, the economy
and our customers - and have begun working in earnest to concretely
achieve this via our “Regional Vision” initiative. This Regional Vision
is focused on addressing regional challenges and achieving sustain-
able, regional growth by cultivating a virtuous economic cycle and
strengthening earning power within the region, thereby maintain-
ing and improving the economic foundations of the region. Moving
forward, we will work with local governments, organizations, com-
panies and other regional entities in order to realize this vision. Addi-
tionally, in March 2023, as part of a comprehensive business alliance
with Nomura Securities Co., Ltd. to provide financial intermediary
services, we opened “Consulting Plazas” in five locations within the
prefecture. We are contributing to regional sustainability by putting
in place a structure that will enable us to provide regional customers
with a greater level of support for asset formation.

Oita Bank’s management philosophy is to make every effort to
contribute to the prosperity of the regional community through our
banking operations, and it is by helping to realize a sustainable re-
gional community that we are working to improve our corporate
value.

FY2022 (Year Ended March 31, 2023) Consolidated Operating
Performance

Deposits

As of March 31, 2023, total deposits, including negotiable certificates
of deposit, amounted to ¥3,540.3 billion, up ¥82.4 billion from one
year earlier.

Loans and Bills Discounted

Total loans and bills discounted outstanding amounted to ¥2,092.1
billion on March 31, 2023, up ¥120.0 billion from one year eartlier,
owing to an increase in business loans, individual loans and loans to
public entities.

Investment Securities

Investment securities on March 31, 2023 totaled ¥1,388.2 billion,
up ¥100.5 billion higher than the previous fiscal year-end, despite
decreases in Japanese government bonds and corporate bonds, due
to a rise in local government bonds and other securities.

Foreign Exchange
Foreign exchange transactions, including international trade trans-
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actions, overseas remittances and foreign currency deposits, totaled
US$1,367 million, US$134 million higher than the previous fiscal
year-end.

Earnings

Ordinary income was up ¥17,384 million year on year, to ¥72,905
million, due to such factors as increased interest on securities, gains
on sales of government bonds and other bonds, and an increase in
gain on reversal of reserve for loan losses.

Ordinary profit was up ¥549 million year on year, to ¥7,796 mil-
lion. Net income attributable to owners of the parent rose ¥33 mil-
lion year on year, to ¥5,409 million, partly due to an increase in
ordinary profit.

Dividend Policy

In due consideration of its responsibility to the public as a financial
institution, the Bank’s fundamental dividend policy is stable and con-
tinuous profit distribution. To this end, we are striving to strengthen
its financial structure by reinforcing the long-term stability of its
management base, improving management efficiency and building
sufficient reserves.

To increase return to shareholders, on the occasion of the 130th
anniversary of Oita Bank’s founding, which was observed on Febru-
ary 1, 2023, the interim dividend was increased 10 yen to 50 yen per
share, thereby making the annual dividend 90 yen.

Capital Adequacy Ratio
As of March 31, 2023, the Bank’s capital adequacy ratio was 9.60%
on a non-consolidated basis and 10.40% on a consolidated basis,
both of which easily exceed the domestic standard of 4%.

For customers to be able to do transactions with us with peace
of mind, we will strive to further increase our capital adequacy and
strengthen our management structure.

Credit Rating

On September 29, 2000, the Bank attained an “A+” long-term pre-
ferred debt rating from Japan Credit Rating Agency, Ltd. (JCR), and
the Bank has consistently maintained that rating for the 23 years
since. This rank indicates “the highest level of certainty of an obligor
to honor its financial obligations,” and, given that “A+”" is the highest
of the three kinds of “A,” the JCR rating attests to the stability and
soundness of the Oita Bank.

Conclusion

Oita Bank recognizes its responsibilities as a regional bank with Oita

Prefecture as its base of operations. Accordingly, we work proactively

to contribute to regional communities through our banking operations.
We ask our stakeholders for their understanding and support of

the Bank’s endeavors.

August 2023

Tomiichiro Goto
President

Consolidated Balance Sheet

THE OITA BANK, LTD. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

March 31, 2023

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars (Note 1)

2023 2022 2023
ASSETS:
Cash and due from banks (N0otes 23 and 24) «..ooveoeoeeee oot ¥ 725,874 ¥ 042673 $ 5,436,036
Call 10ANS oo 2,537 18,999
Commercial paper and other debt purchased 3,310 3,476 24,788
Moty Beld dti st QNG T s st i o 3,991 16,931 29,888
Inivestment:secutities (Motes §, 8, 12 and 24).i i s i 1,388,202 1,287,683 10,396,180
Loans and bills discounted (Notes 8, 12, 13 and 24) .....ov oo 2,092,111 1,972,040 15,667,722
Foreign exchange assets (Note 8) .......c.c.c......... 4331 11,591 32,434
Lease receivables and leased investment assets 16,022 16,538 119,988
Other assets (NOLES 8 AT 12) oottt e e e e e s e ees oo 54,031 36,034 404,635
Premises and equipment (INGLE O v e i 30,286 29,575 226,810
Tritatigible BeaBta (INETE LY b mm i o o T ST e oo v o enmemess o 689 895 5,159
Asset for retirement benefits (INOLE 16) ........oveeerereeeerirereseieseseessseeeseesseseeseeseseesessenenseeenens 9,085 0,887 68,037
Deferred 1ax assets (INOLE 20 .........ouiuereeeeeeeeee e oot eee e e ee s s s et e oo e s e s s 10,412 4,413 77,974
Customers' liabilities [or acceptances and guarantees (Notes 8 and 11) .........cooovvviunnnnnann, 10,218 8,098 76,522
Reserve for loan losses (Notes 3 and 24) (26,717) (29,270) (200,082)
DT vt s s s S S B e B B e S ¥4,324.388 ¥4,310,569 $32,385,141
LIABILITIES:
Deposits (Notes 12, 14 a0 24) ..o ettt eeen e ¥3,540,319 ¥3,457,890 $26,513,285
Call IOMBY ...t 3,671
Paysblesunder repurchiass agreetiietits (N6t 12 e cuvvsmanmssmmn s v 47,902 16,827 358,735
Payables under securities lending transactions (Note 12)....cccoovviiieiviiieiiiiniiccieea 83,698 138,405 626,810
Borrowed money (Notes 12, 15 and 24).......cooeiiioeoiiiiieeeeees et ee s ee e eeseereseansenae 388,765 426,084 2911,443
Foreign exchange Habilities .........cooooeuivieisieiieeiiees e ess e 37 45 277
OUEr HADIHTES. ...ttt 54,108 48,638 405,212
Liability for retirement benefits (NOTE 16) ......coovieioeiieeiceeee et 6,852 6,631 51,314
Reserve for peimburseient of dBPORIES .o s smiuiasstionsssss oo s i s sts titics 879 1,116 6,582
Deferred tax Habilities iNEE DOV oo st it s v s s e 12 11 89
Deferred tax liabilities [or land revaluation excess 4,074 4,174 30,509
Acceptances and guarantees (NOLE 11) ....o.vireriorriiiiiieceice e 10,218 8,098 76,522
TOUAL HADTHHES . -.....ooovoo oo eeeeee e 4,136,868 4,112,496 30,980,813
EQUITY (Notes 17 and 29):
Common stock- authorized, 30,000,000 shares; issued, 16,243,634 shares in
20233808 DODY s s i e R S T S B 19,598 19,598 146,768
CaPILAL SUTPIUS 1.ttt et b sttt st n et et e e senenen 13,768 13,768 103,107
Stock acquisition rights (Note 18) ... 246 220 1,842
RELAINEA @ATTIIIIZS 1.ttt ettt ettt eeea e eaeen 151,743 147,390 1,136,396
Treasury stock- at cost, 460,533 shares in 2023 and 469,710 shares in 2022 ......ccccooevvnenen. (2,078) (2,122) (15,562)
Accumulated other comprehensive income:
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities (NOte 6) ......ooooooviovioeee oo (2,941) 0,141 (22,025)
Deferred gain (loss) on derivatives under hedge accounting (Note 25) .........oo.oeereivrenne, (454) 1,673 (3,399)
Land TeVAIUATION @XCESS.....oviviiiiieeeeececteet e eesceeees s st ee e et s et ese e ete e enese e eseseeeeseeeeneesnas 8,124 8,353 60,840
Defined retirement benefit plans (Note 16) (554) (18) (4,148)
Total o 187,451 198,005 1,403,811
Noncontrolling interests 68 67 509
D O sttt s 0 0 e ot e R A B % £ A S S AR A 187,520 198,072 1,404,328
TOTAL....c ottt et es ettt b ve e s s et sat et et et e e eaeas et ete e em e st et eneeeese st ettt enesn st emenenens ¥4,324,388 ¥4,310,569 $32,385,141

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Coneolidated Statement ominoo—e B Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

THE OITA BANK, LTD. and Consolidated Subsidiaries THE OITA BANK, LTD. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Year Ended March 31, 2023 Year Ended March 31, 2023
Millions of Yen U.s.T Sﬁﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁg{e D Millions:ok Yen .. ggﬁ:ﬁ? ?;g{e )
2023 2022 2023 2023 2022 2023
INCOME (Note 21):
Interest on: NET INCOME ¥ 5410 ¥ 5379 $ 40,515
a7 a1 111 ¥22.474 ¥20,859 $168,306 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) (Note 22):
B T — 21,154 12,182 158,421 Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities............ccocoovvinivcniiiiiniinsiniicieinis (12,082) (8,953) (90,481)
10T ) 490 654 3.669 Deferred gain (loss) on derivatives under hedge accounting ..., (2,128) 1,202 (15,936)
Total interest income (Note 26)... 44,119 33,695 330,405 Dehned vetiveivient DETEAt PIERL .ot s s s s (535) (1,043) (4,006)
Fees and commissions.. 9,640 9,086 72,193 Total other comprehensive income (loss) .... (14,747) (8,795) (110,439)
Other operating income ....... 14,663 10,743 109,810 COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) oottt eee e eeaeeee e aae e aneeeaa s ¥(9,337) ¥(3,416) $(69,924)
Gain on reversal of reserve O LOAIL 10SSES.. 1o er oo 2,309 17,291
Ga]ns on Sa]es of SIOCl\S gnd O[her securities. 1’954 1’728 141633 TOTAL COMPREHENSWE INCOME (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OB LEEOIIE oo e e e ettt s+ e e e ee e 332 450 2,486 Owners of the parent... ¥(9,338) ¥(3,418) $(69,931)
TOUAL TTLCOMIE 1o oottt e e 73,020 55,705 546,843 Noncontrolling interests 0 1 7
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
EXPENSES:
Interest on: l
DIEPOSILS w.vrveerserereseees s e eeeesseeesseesee e eeseeseeesesseee e eeserereseees e s e 187 252 1,400 l
BOtTHWIES At TEQISCOUIER s mwsuninvuiusiansns vavage akiuiasi o ss 6 s doi S0 A S S oot 36 28 269 |
OURET oo v ss et ee et e e s e e e s e e e ee oo 1,730 208 12,955 |
Total interest expenses (Note 26) ... 1,954 489 14,633
BB AT OO T A OIS s s S S s B B e s s S s 1,922 1,976 14,393
Other operating expenses.. . 32,506 16,448 243,435
General and admm;strauve expenses (NOLe 19) 27,130 27,186 203,175
Provision for loan losses............. 1,180
Losses on sales of stocks and 0Lher securities.. 538 388 . 4,029
Impairment losses on stocks and other securities ... 710 436 5,317
Impairment losses (Notes 9 and 26) ..........ccoveiiinriiiini s e 325 324 2,433
Other expenses... 511 312 3,826
Total expenses N S == 0 S SR 65,600 48,742 491,275
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 7,419 6,962 55,560
INCOME TAXES (Note 20):
Current .. 1,621 1,851 12,139
Deferred 387 (268) 2,898 |
Tota] TTICOTIE BAKEEL .o ncnswyomsinessnsnnmansengssnsams s pmerimsmsssrsidotonmes nmsay s e Fa s s s SR A tasis 2,009 1,583 15,045
INET IINCIOME .. cimisiinsesmssuoisssimsnsns s s s s s s s s §s s i s e 5,410 5379 40,515
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS ........coocooonnnn. 0 3 6
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT ..........coooovviiviiiiiien. ¥ 5409 ¥ 5376 $ 40,507
Yen U.S. Dollars
2023 2022 2023
PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK (Notes 2.r and 28):
BASIC NIEL TTICOMMIE. ....evtiivi ettt ettt sttt ettt e bt sh e e e e ene e ¥342.76 ¥340.96 $ 256
Diluted net income.. 340.64 339.17 2.55
Cash dividends appllcable o the year 90.00 80.00 0.67

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

THE OITA BANK, LTD. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Year Ended March 31, 2023

Consolidated Statement

of Changes in Equity

THE OITA BANK, LTD. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Year Ended March 31, 2023

Thousands Millions of Yen A Thousands of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Mt Homs g Yer U.S. Dollars (Note 1)
Unrealized  Deferred 2023 2022 2023
Oumdmg Gain Gain (Loss) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Number of (Losshon  on Deriva- Defined Income before INCOIME LAXES ........c.ovvvvieeis et )
Shares of Stock Available-  tivesunder ~ Land  Retirement Non- Adiustments for: e e ¥ TH —_— $ 53.360
Common  Common  Capital Acquisiton Retained  Treasury  for-Sale Hedge  Revaluation  Benefit controlling  Toul J '
Stock Sk Smhis  Bidws  Eeiings Sk Seedriles Acouniny  Exoss Plans Toul leiits.  Eqlly e oL T T 595 4,455
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2021 Income taxes-paid ... (2,981) (3,077) (22,324)
(APRIL1,2021,as previously reported) 15,745 ¥19,598 ¥13771  ¥266 ¥143043 ¥(2254) ¥I8003 ¥ 471 ¥8664 ¥1,025 ¥202681 ¥65 ¥202,746 Depreciation and amortization ................c...... 1,536 1,662 11,503
Cumulative effect of accounting Impairment losses .. = 325 324 2,433
change (41) [G3)) (41) Increase (decrease) in reserve f01 !oan losscs s (2,552) 324 (19,111)
BAWCE,APm 1,2021 (asrestated) 15,745 19598 13771 266 143,002 (2254) 18,093 471 8,664 1,025 202,639 65 202,705 Increase (decrease) in liability for retirement beneﬁts 175 21 1,310
Net income attributable to owners of (Increase) decrease in asset for retirement Benefits .........oovooveoe oo 80 44) 599
the parent 5376 5,376 5376 Increase (decrease) in reserve [or reimbursement of deposits..............c.ocooovvievveonceeine. (237) (266) (1,774)
guaShhdmd?ndS, ¥30—000Ci€r share " (1,260) - (1-26(3) a, 263% Interest income-accrued basis (44,119) (33,695) (330,405)
Disr;ﬂ;es[ [Ilf:s?::ltoc ) g - 3 - 33 | Eler(esl_ e:)qlaenses-accmed SIS ... cvvvvvvoees et 1,954 489 14,633
. et (gain) 1055 on iNVeSUMENT SECUTUES . ......ooveieviiiiit et 13,317 5,330 99,730
Transter from land revaluation excess 310 310 310 < p ’ $ H
. i Net (gain) loss on money held in trust....... 59 68 441
Tcra;riﬁrsir;;n u;e{mned earnings to . - Foreign exchange (gains) losses.... o 24 G 179
Net change in the year (45) 895 1202 G10) (043 (9.150) 1 (©149) Net (gain) loss on disposal of ﬁxed assets .. 51 (40) 381
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2022 5773 19508 13768 N0 147390 (122 914l 1673 8353 (18) 198,005 67 198072 Eet (1nc1ease€ddecreas;: in g)ans and bills dlscounted ............................................. (120,070) (65,158) (899,198)
S - et increase (decrease) in deposits ..........cvceivieiiiiicn e 82,429 162,999 617,306
the parent 5409 5,409 5400 Net increase (decrease) in Dorrowed MONEY ... s rmiissssrisiiis i, (38,219) 197,180 (286,220)
Cash dividends, ¥80.00 per share (1.262) (1,262) (1,262) Net (increase) decrease in due from banks (excluding due from the Bank of Japan)......... (512) 4,928 (3,834)
Purchase of treasury stock ) ) ) 1 Net (increase) decrease in call loans ...........c.cooveiiiiiceiioieieeseeee e (2,371 437 (17,756)
Dispuosal of treasury stock 10 (22) 45 2 22 Net increase (decrease) in call money ..........cocooooviioiieieiiiiie (3,671) 3,671 (27,491)
Transfer from land revaluation excess 228 228, 228 Net increase (decrease) in payables under securities lending transactions................ (54,707) 119,263 (409,698)
Trmfer from retained earnings to Net (increase) decrease in foreign exchange assets.........ccoovuiiiiiiiiicrioie e 7,259 1,017 54,362
capital surplus n 22) i Net increase (decrease) in [oreign exchange liabilities.............ocoovoviinnnne, (8) 9 (59)
Net change in the year 25 (12082) (ug) (28 (535) (14950) 0 (14949) Net (increase) decrease in lease receivables and leased investment assets.... 515 (715) 3,856
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2023 15783 ¥19598 YI3.768  ¥246 V151743  ¥(2.078) ¥ (2941) ¥ (454) ¥8124 ¥ (554) ¥187.451 ¥68 ¥187.520 Tiiterest tnennieseush Basia:. o oo s g 43,420 33,736 325,170
Interest expenses-cash DasiS.. ... ...t (1,576) (547) (11,802)
Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 1) : L@ 14T o 4 RSOSSN 15,922 35,404 1 19,239
Un;::l:‘::d“ﬂﬂlﬁgﬁ‘:; Comprehensive Income Total adjustments....... (103,359) 463,319 (774,050)
i e Net cash provided by (used 1n) operatmg ACLVILIES ©.e e eeee e e e e ss e (95,940) 470,282 (718,490)
(Loss) on  on Deriva- Defined
; Stack 5 Available- tivesunder  land  Retirement Non- i INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Common  Capital  Acquisiion Retaine Treasury  [or-Sale Hedge  Revaluation  Benefit contrelling T
ok G g It Gk Seage: e ur%m <3 o o e S el llj:i;‘s?:;:sﬁos 1nve15Lm.=:qu BBCIIEIBE o cvuieai e b o e o sy S e S R S N (680,306) (492,940) (5,094,780)
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2022 SI46,768 S103107  SL647 SL103796 S(IS89L) $68.436 S12529  S6255  S(139) SL482850  SS0I SL483352 | Piranerile o mteattles ol e e o TN 288,560 229,858 2,163,229
= . roceeds [rom maturities of investment securities .. 260,704 226,464 1,952,400
the parent 50,307 40,507 40507 Payments for increase in money held in trust ... (68) (53) (509)
Cash dividends, $0.59 per share O450) (9,451) 9451) gr"cieds f“’fm decteme Limoney held tn trast 12,923 2,971 96,779
Purchase of treasury stock ) ) [ urchases ol premises and eQUIPIMENL .........oociiiviiniiniiiieren e (2,795) (1,2349) (20,931)
Disposdl of treasary siock (168 o 164 164 PUrchases of IMIANGIDlE ASSELS .........vovvvvvererrrisersssesseeesssesseeserenssess oo (136) (138) (1,018)
Travialer o laiid ressaliiatiai eness 1707 1,707 1,707 Proceeds from sales of prem]se: and equlpmem 823 887 6,163
Transfer from retained camings to Payments for asset retirement OBHGALIONS ...........cocoruiirriririieiieresr e (81) (606)
capital surplus 164 (169) Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities ... (120,081) (34,183) (899,281)
Net change in the year 187 (90481)  (15.936) (1,707) (4,006)  (111,959) 7 (111952
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2023 §146,768 §103,107  S1842 $1,136396 $(15562) $(22,025) $(3399) S60.840  §(4.148) $1403811 $509 $1.404.328 FORWARD L.ttt ettt es e ¥ (216,022) ¥ 436,098 $ (1,617,778)

See notes to consolidated financial statements. (Coiiied)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

THE OITA BANK, LTD. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Year Ended March 31, 2023

Millions of Yen

Thousands ol
U.S. Dollars (Note 1)

2023

2022

2023

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
DIEIAETAS P neerirmmmmeommmtessemmimesmrssommmma s o om0 e AT S AR e e s
Repayriient of 1ease obHGaAtORS v s i amm s i st o st st i i
Purchases of treasury stock
Procesds fromi sales Of SreasEi SIOER . oms e i S S
Net cash provided by (used in) financing actiVIties.........ocoovioiiiiiiiiciceiccceee e

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENTS ON CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS... :
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) ]N CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR .......cccoccovvviiiiiiiieeieeeae
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR (Note 23) ...

See notes Lo consolidated financial statements.
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¥ (216,022) ¥ 436,098 $ (1,617,778)
(1,261) (1,259) (9,443)
22) (21) (164)
(1 @ (7
22 93 164
(1,263) (1,190) (9,458)
24 4 (179)
(217,310) 434913 (1,627,424)
940,996 506,083 7,047,075
¥ 723,685 ¥ 940,996 $ 5,419,643
(Concluded)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

THE OITA BANK, LTD. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Year Ended March 31, 2023

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of THE OITA BANK,
LTD. (the “Bank”) and its seven consolidated subsidiaries have been prepared
in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Japanese Financial Instru-
ments and Exchange Act, its related accounting regulations and the Enforce-
ment Regulation for the Banking Law of Japan (the “Banking Law”), and in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, which are
different in certain respects as to the application and disclosure requirements
of International Financial Reporting Standards.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, certain reclassifications
and rearrangements have been made to the consolidated financial statements
issued domestically in order to present them in a form which is more familiar
Lo readers outside Japan. In addition, certain reclassifications have heen made
in the 2022 consolidated financial statements to confirm to the classifications
used in 2023.

The consolidated financial statements are stated in Japanese yen, the cur-
rency of the country in which the Bank is incorporated and operates. Amounts
of less than one million yen have been omitted in the accompanying consoli-
dated financial statements as permitted by the Japanese Financial Instruments
and Exchange Act. Consequently, the totals shown in the accompanying con-
solidated financial statements do not necessarily agree with the sum of the in-
dividual amounts.

The translations of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts are in-
cluded solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan and have been made
at the rate of ¥133.53 1o $1, the approximate rate of exchange at March 31,
2023. Such translations should not be construed as representation that the Japa-
nese yen amounts could be converted into U.S. dollars at that or any other rate.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. Consolidation - The consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of the Bank and its seven significant subsidiaries (together, the “Group™.
The fiscal periods of all consolidated subsidiaries end on March 31.

Under the control and influence concepts, those companies in which the
Bank, directly or indirectly, is able to exercise control over operations are
fully consolidated.

Investments in the remaining unconsolidated subsidiaries are stated at
cost. If the equity method of accounting had been applied to the invest-
ments in these companies, the effect on the accompanying consolidated
financial statlements would not be material.

DAIGIN BUSINESS SERVICE CO., LTD. was excluded from the scope
of consolidation from the current consolidated fiscal year because it was
eliminated in an absorption-type merger with the Bank as the surviving
company.

All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been elimi-
nated in consolidation. All material unrealized profit included in assets re-
sulting from transactions within the Group is also eliminated.

b. Cash and Cash Equivalents - For the purpose of reporting cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash and amounts due from the Bank of Japan.

¢. Trading Account Securities - Trading account securities, which are held
for the purpose of earning capital gains in the near term, are reported at fair
value, and the related unrealized gains and losses are included in earnings.
The cost of trading account securities sold is determined by the moving-
average method.

d. Investment Securities and Money Held in Trust - All applicable securities are
classified and accounted for, depending on management's intent, as follows:

(D) held-to-maturity debt securities, which are expected to be held to maturity
with the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are reported at am-
ortized cost, and (i) available-for-sale securities, which are not classified as
either of trading account securities or held-to-maturity debt securities, are re-
ported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, net of applicable taxes,
reported in a separate component of equity. The cost of available-for-sale
securities sold is determined based on the moving-average method.

Nonmarketable available-for-sale equity securities are stated at cost or de-
termined by the moving-average method.

For other than temporary declines in fair value, investment securities are
reduced to net realizable value by a charge to income.

Securilies managed through money held in trust accounis are reported at
fair value and the related unrealized gains and losses are included in eamings.

. Premises and Equipment - Premises and equipment are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation. Depreciation of premises and equipment is prin-
cipally computed using the declining-balance method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets and depreciation of leased premises and equipment
is provided on the straight-line method over the lease periods.

. Software - Cost of computer software obtained for internal use is amortized

using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of five years.

. Long-Lived Assets - The Group reviews their long-lived assets for impair-

ment whenever events or changes in circumstance indicate the carrying
amount of an asset or asset group may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or asset group exceeds
the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the
continued use and eventual disposition of the asset or asset group. The
impairment loss would be measured as the amount by which the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
the discounted cash flows [rom the continued use and eventual disposition
of the asset or the net selling price at disposition.

. Land Revaluation - Under the “Law of Land Revaluation,” the Bank elected

a one-time revaluation of its own-use land to a value based on real estate
appraisal information as of March 31, 1998.

The resulting land revaluation excess represents unrealized appreciation
ol land and is stated, net of income taxes, as a component of equity. There
was no effect on the statement of income. Continuous readjustment is not
permitted unless the land value subsequently declines significantly such
that the amount of the decline in value should be removed from the land
revaluation excess account and related deferred tax liabilities.

As of March 31, 2023 and 2022, the carrying amount of the land after
the above one-time revaluation exceeded the market value by ¥8,988 mil-
lion ($67,310 thousand) and ¥9,210 million, respectively.

Foreign Currency Items - All assets and liabilities denominated in loreign
currencies are translated into Japanese yen at the current exchange rates at
each balance sheet date.

Reserve for Loan Losses - The Bank determines the amount of the reserve
[or loan losses by means of management's judgment and assessment of fu-
ture losses based on the self-assessment system. This system reflects past
experience of credit losses, possible credit losses, business and economic
conditions, the character, quality and performance of the portfolio, and
other pertinent indicators.

The Bank implemented the self-assessment system for its asset quality.
The quality of all loans is assessed by branches and the credit supervisory
division with a subsequent audit by the Bank's asset review and inspection
division in accordance with the Bank’s policy and rules for self-assessment
of asset quality.
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The Bank has established a credit rating system under which its custom-
ers are classified into five categories. The credit rating system is used for
self-assessment of asset quality. All loans are classified into five categories

" ou

for self-assessment purposes such as “normal,” “caution,
ruptcy,

Reserve for loan losses is calculated based on the actual past loss ratio
for normal and caution categories, and the fair value of the collateral for
collateral-dependent loans and other [actors of solvency including value of

possible bank-

nu

virtual bankruptey” and “legal bankruptcy.”

future cash flows for other self-assessment categories. For loans classified as
possible bankruptey, the reserve for loan losses is provided for in an amount
deemed necessary to cover possible loan losses considering the customer’s
solvency and other factors, after the estimated fair value of the collateral real
estate or guaranteed amount has been deducted. For loans classified as vir-
tual bankruptey or legal bankruptcy, the reserve for loan losses is provided
for based upon the loan amount, after the estimated fair value of the collat-
eral real estate or guaranteed amount has been deducted.

In addition, for loans which are mainly classified into possible bank-
ruptey and restructured loans as defined in Note 8 below, if the exposure
to an obligor exceeds a certain specific amount and if future cash flows of
the principal and interest can be reasonably estimated, the discounted cash
flow method is used to calculate the reserve for loan losses, under which
method the reserve is determined as the difference between the book value
of the loan and the present value of future cash flows discounted using the
contractual interest rate before the loan is classified as one of the above loans.

The consolidated subsidiaries determine the amount of the reserve for
loan losses by a comparable self-assessment system as the Bank.

L. Retirement and Pension Plans - The Bank has contributory funded defined
benefit pension plans and unfunded retirement benefit plans for employees.
Consolidated subsidiaries have unfunded retirement benefit plans.

The Company accounts for the liability for retirement benefits based on
the projected benefit obligations and plan assets at the balance sheet date.
The projected benefit obligations are attributed to periods on a benefit for-
mula basis. Actuarial gains and losses and past service costs that are yet to
be recognized in profit or loss are recognized within equity (accumulated
other comprehensive income), after adjusting for tax effects and are recog-
nized in profit or loss over 10 years no longer than the expected average
remaining service period of the employees. The discount rate is determined
using a single weighted-average discount rate reflecting the estimated tim-
ing and amount of benelit payment.

Retirement allowances for directors of consolidated subsidiaries are re-
corded as a liability at the amount that would be required if all directors
retired at the balance sheet date.

L. Stock Options - Under Accounting Standards Board of Japan (*ASBJ") State-
ment No. 8, “Accounting Standard for Share-based Payment,” requires com-
panies to measure the cost of employee stock options based on the fair value
at the date of grant and recognize compensation expense over the vesting
period as consideration for receiving goods or services. The standard also
requires companies to account for stock options granted to non-employees
based on the fair value of either the stock options or the goods or services
received. In the balance sheet, stock options are presented as stock acquisi-
tion rights as a separate component of equity until exercised. The standard
covers equity-settled, share-based payment transactions, but does not cover
cash-settled, share-based payment transactions.

m. Revenue Recognition - The Group recognizes revenue in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for
satisfying performance obligations to transfer the goods or services prom-
ised in contracts with customers. The nature of performance obligations for
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each of the Group’s major business and when such obligations are satisfied
are as follows:

Fees and commissions include administrative fees for deposit and loan
businesses, exchange businesses operations and securities-related business-
es, and are obligated to provide services based on contracts with customers.
These transactions are recognized as revenue as performance obligations are
satisfied upon the completion of service delivery.

. Income Taxes - The provision [or income taxes is computed based on the

pretax income included in the consolidated statement of income. The asset
and liability approach is used to recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities
for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences berween
the carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred
taxes are measured by applying currently enacted income tax rates to the
temporary dilferences.

. Reserve for Reimbursement of Deposits - Reserve for reimbursement of

deposits is provided for the deposits derecognized [rom the liabilities at the
estimated amount of future claims for withdrawal.

. Leases - As Lessor, lease revenue is recognized at the date of each lease

payment according to the lease contracts. As Lessee, all finance lease trans-
actions are capitalized to recognize lease assets and lease obligations in the
balance sheet.

. Derivatives and Method of Hedge Accounting - The Bank’s policy is to use

derivative financial instruments (“derivatives”) primarily for the purpose of
reducing market risks associated with its assets and liabilities. The Bank also
utilizes derivatives as a part of its trading activities. Consolidated subsidiar-
ies do not urilize any derivatives.

The Bank enters into interest rate swaps as a means of hedging its inter-
est ate risk on certain loans and investment securities. The Bank also enters
into foreign exchange forward contracts and currency swaps, futures and
options to hedge exchange risk associated with its assets and liabilities de-
nominated in foreign currencies.

The Bank applies deferred hedge accounting, which is stipulated in
the “Treatment of Accounting and Auditing of Application of Accounting
Standard for Financial Instruments in the Banking Industry” (the Japanese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “JICPA”) Industry Committee
Practice Guidance No. 24), to the interest risk caused by its financial assets
and liabilities.

In evaluating the effectiveness of a hedge, the hedged item, such as loans,
and the hedge instruments, such as interest rate swaps, are specified and
evaluated regarding the hedging approach. Effectiveness of the hedging ap-
proach is evaluated by verifying the correlation of the interest fluctuation
factor of the hedged item and the hedge instruments.

. Per Share Information - Basic net income per share is computed by di-

viding net income attributable to common shareholders by the weighted-
average number of common shares outstanding for the period. The average
number of common shares used in the computation was 15,781 thousand
shares and 15,767 thousand shares for the years ended March 31, 2023 and
2022, respectively.

Diluted net income per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur
if the outstanding stock options and convertible bonds were exercised. Diluted
net income per share assumes full exercise of the outstanding stock options
and convertible bonds at the beginning of the year (or at the time of grant).

Cash dividends per share presented in the accompanying consolidated
statement of income are dividends applicable to the respective years, in-
cluding dividends to be paid after the end of the year.

. Change the Display Method - For dividend income from group credit life

insurance, etc., which was previously included in “Other income,” the bank

has reviewed its accounting method in consideration of the revisions to the
conlracts related to insurance premiums and dividend income for certain
group credit life insurance policies as well as the prospect of an increase in
such insurance policies.

Accordingly, the bank has determined that it will be more appropriate
lo record the net amount of insurance premiums after deducting dividend
income, from the viewpoint of disclosing the actual amount of insurance
premiums to be borne.

As a result, the above dividend income has been included in “Fees and
commissions” since the current consolidated fiscal year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATE

liem for which the amount was recorded in the consolidated financial state-
ments for the covered consolidated fiscal year based on accounting estimates,
and which may have a significant impact on the consolidated financial state-
ments for the following fiscal year, was as follows:

Rescrve for loan losses

(1) Carrying amount

Millions of Yen Thensinde of

U.S. Dollars
2023 2022 2023
Reserve [or loan losses ................ ¥26,717 ¥29.270 $200,082

(2) Information on the significant accounting estimate
(a) Calculation method
Debtor categories are determined based on the debtor’s financial position and
results of operations, as well as its future business plans, and the reserve for
loan losses is recorded according to these debtor categories.

The specific method of calculating the reserve for loan losses for each debtor
category is disclosed in Note 2.j, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
- Reserve for Loan Losses.”

(b) Significant assumptions

The significant assumptions are the assessment of the reasonableness of the
debtors’ future business plans, which are used as the basis for determining the
debtor categories. In assessing the reasonableness of business plans, considers
the achievability of the plans.

Furthermore, the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the economy: the
Bank assumes that it will continue into the next consolidated fiscal year and
beyond. Under these circumstances, the debtor categaries are determined con-
sidering the information affecting the estimate that is currently available. There
is no significant change in the assumptions from the previous consolidated
fiscal year.

(c) Impact on the consolidated financial statements for the following consoli-
dated fiscal year

1f there are changes in the assumptions used in relation to the debtor categories,

the status of the COVID-19 pandemic, and its impact on the economy, etc., the

balance of the reserve for loan losses may fluctuate, which may have an impact

on profit or loss.

ACCOUNTING CHANGE

Application of the Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for Fair
Value Measurement

Effective April 1, 2022, the Group applied ASB] Guidance No. 31, “Implemen-
tation Guidance on Accounting Standard for Fair Value Measurement,” (the

“Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard™. The Group applied the
Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standards prospectively.

There is no impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Investment trusts are included in matters related to the breakdown of the fair
value of financial instruments by level in Note 24, “Financial Instruments and
Related Disclosures.”

BUSINESS COMBINATION
Year Ended March 31, 2023
Transaction Under Common Control
Merger of consolidated subsidiary
Overview ol Transactions

Name and business of combining companies:
Name of the combining company: ~ THE OITA BANK, LTD.
Business of the combining company: Banking
Name of the combined company: DAIGIN BUSINESS SERVICE CO., LTD.
Business of the combined company: Agency service for banking business
Date of the business combination: April 1, 2022
Legal form of the business combinarion:
Absorplion-Type Merger with the Bank as the surviving company and DAI-
GIN BUSINESS SERVICE CO., LTD. as the absorbed company.
Company name after the combination: THE OITA BANK, LTD.
Other matters concerning the outline of transactions:
In order to improve the efficiency of management and effectively utilize
management resources in the Group, DAIGIN BUSINESS SERVICE CO.,
LTD., a wholly-owned subsidiary, was merged into the Bank.

Summary of Accounting Treatments

This merger is treated as a transaction under common control in accordance
with ASB] Statement No.21, “Accounting Standard for Business Combinations”
and ASB] Guidance No.10, “Implementation Guidance on Accounting Stan-
dard for Business Combinations and Accounting Standard for Business Dives-
titures.”

n TRADING ACCOUNT SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT SECURITIES

There were no trading account securities as of March 31, 2023 and 2022.
Investment securities at March 31, 2023 and 2022, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen

U.S. Dollars
2023 2022 2023
Japanese government bonds ...... ¥ 213578 ¥ 243102 $ 1,599,475
Local government honds.... 4 314,585 286,141 2,355,912
Corporate bonds......... = 251,387 261,275 1,882,625
Equity securities........ooiiiieieneae 79,321 69,756 594,031
OB oy 529,329 427,408 3,964,120

Total .o __¥1,388.202  ¥1.287,683  $10.396.180

The costs and aggregate [air value of securities at March 31, 2023 and 2022,
were as shown in the table below.

Millions of Yen

Unrealized  Unrealized Fair

March 31, 2023 Cost Gains Losses Value
Securities classified as:

Available-for-sale:

Equity securities.............. ¥ 51,741 ¥27,578 ¥2.233 ¥ 77,086

Debt securities 708,435 1,842 11,207 699,069

Other.....ocoeee..... 539,422 2,162 23,387 518,197

Held-to-maturity:

Debl securities........ccocoueenne. 80,480 115 1,157 79,439
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Millions of Yen
Unrealized  Unrealized Fair
March 31, 2022 Cost Gains Losses Value

Securities classified as:

Available-for-sale:

Equity securities..... ¥ 44522 ¥25,255 ¥2.156 ¥ 67,621
Debt securities........ 738,028 1,697 9,023 730,701
OB oo aransses 420,328 5,712 9327 416,713
Held-to-maturit

Debt securities.... 59,817 528 59,289
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Unrealized  Unrealized Fair
March 31, 2023 Cost Gains Losses Value

Securities classified as:

Available-for-sale:

Equity securities........cooe. § 387,485 $206,530 §16,722 § 577,293
Debt securities..........cceeeeeee. . 5,305,436 13,794 83,928 5,235,295

Other....cocoeveesericnnneeeeees 4,039,706 16,191 175,144 3,880,753
Held-to-maturity:
Debt securities. ....cooveveeieae 602,711 861 8,664 594,915

Securities lending based on noncollateralized contracts were included in in-
vestment securities and amounted to ¥38,395million at March 31, 2022. There
were no securities lending based on noncollateralized contracts for the year
ended March 31, 2023.

The information related to available-for-sale securities which were sold dur-
ing the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, was as follows:

Millions of Yen

Realized Realized
March 31, 2023 Proceeds Gains Losses

Available-for-sale:
Equity sECittEs «ummmmmmmimisssmis
Debt securities.
Otheri.ii

¥ 7,463 ¥1592 ¥ 312
152,955 65 8,223
130,727 663 11,637

.o _¥201.145 ¥2.321  ¥20,173

Millions of Yen

Realized Realized

March 31, 2022 Proceeds Gains Losses
Available-for-sale:

Frpity securities i s

Debt securities.

Other. "

Totl vt

¥ 4922 ¥1,395 ¥ 388
45,010 52 268
182,507 2,178 7,584

¥232 440 ¥3.627 ¥8,240
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Realized Realized
March 31, 2023 Proceeds Gains Losses
Available-for-sale:

EQUILY BECUIES .« vcoememsmcnoseissiosssss $ 55,890 $§11,922 $ 2,336
Debt securities.... .o 1145472 486 61,581
Other..... 979,008 4,965 87,148
77 (T ey T S $2.180,371 $§17.381  $151,074

Impairment losses on available-for-sale securities for the year ended March
31, 2022, were ¥47 million. Impairment losses available-for-sale securities for
the year ended March 31, 2023, were not recognized.

Net unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities for the years ended
March 31, 2023 and 2022, consisted of the following;

Millions of Yen Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
2023 2022 2023

Valuation differences:

Available-for-sale securities....... ¥(5,244) ¥12,157 $(39,272)
Deferred tax liabilities................. 2,330 (2,989) 17,449
Noncontrolling interests ............ 27) @7 (202)
Net unrealized gain (loss) on

available-for-sale securities ....... ¥(2.941) ¥ 9,141 $ 22025
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MONEY HELD IN TRUST

The carrying amounts and unrealized gains (losses) of money held in trust, as
of March 31, 2023 and 2022, were as [ollows:
Money held in trust held for trading

Millions of Yen Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
2023 2022 2023
Carrying amounts...........c.cceeeee ¥3,991 ¥16,031 $20,888

Unrealized gains (losses)
credited to income ....................

B LOANS AND BILLS DISCOUNTED

Loans and bills discounted as of March 31, 2023 and 2022, consisted of the
following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2023 2022 2023
Bills discounted..........ccocorvrennen. ¥ 4824 ¥ 4569 § 36,126
Loans on notes ........cccceeveereninnne 60,968 58,804 456,586
Loans on deeds.. 1,868,059 1,760,141 13,989,807
Orerdtafts s 158,258 148,525 1,185,186

Total oo ¥2,092.111 ¥1.972.040 515,667,722

Bills discounted are accounted for as financial transactions in accordance
with the JICPA Industry Committee Practice Guidance No. 24. The Bank has
rights to sell or pledge these bills discounted. The total of the face value of
bills discounted was ¥4,824million ($36,126 thousand) and ¥4,569 million at
March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Claims based on the Banking Act and the Act on Emergency Measures for
the Revitalization of Financial Functions are as follows. The receivables include
corporate bonds (limited to the corporate bonds on which the payment of all or
part of the principal and interest is guaranteed by financial institutions holding
such bonds and which were issued through private placement as defined in Ar-
ticle 2, Paragraph 3 of the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act), loans and
bills discounted, foreign exchange assets, other assets booked as accrued inter-
ests, suspense payments or customers' liabilities for acceptance and guarantee,
and securities if the Bank lent such securities which are required to be disclosed
in a note to its balance sheets (they are limited to loans for use or lending under
rental contract).

= Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2023 2022 Lo
Claims against bankrupt or ¥ 7,955 ¥ 5,192 3 39574

de facto bankrupt borrowers ...
Doubtful claims ........ccoooerrriennne 38,918 45,167 201,455
Accruing loans eontractually past
due three months or more..........
Restructured loans...........coeuvnen. 199 205 1,490
] ¥47.073 ¥50,566 $352,527

Claims against bankrupt or de facto bankrupt borrowers represent claims
held against borrowers who have been declared insolvent or in a substantially
similar condition, on the grounds of the commencement of bankruptcy or re-
structuring proceedings, filing for the proceedings of rehabilitation or other
similar legal proceedings.

Doubitful claims are those against borrowers who have not yet failed but
their financial condition and business performance have deteriorated, with a
high possibility that the principal and interest on these claims will not be re-
ceived as per agreement. Claims against bankrupt or de facto bankrupt bor-
rower are excluded.

Accruing loans contractually past due three months or more are loans in
which the principal or interest is three months or more past due. Claims against

bankrupt or de facto bankrupt borrowers and doubtful claims are excluded.

Restructured loans, designed to assist in the recovery of the financial sound-
ness of debtors, are loans on which the Group granted concessions {e.g., re-
duction of the stated interest rate, deferral of interest payment, extension of
maturity date, reduction of the face amount). Claims against bankrupt or de
facto bankrupt borrowers, doubtful claims and accruing loans contractually
past due three months or more are excluded.

X preMISES AND EQUIPMENT
Premises and equipment as of March 31, 2023 and 2022, consisted of the following;

Thousands of

Millions of Yen

U.S. Dollars
2023 2022 2023
Buildings ..o, ¥ 6,551 ¥ 4,869 $ 49,060
Land .......... 20,389 20,569 152,692
Leased assets..... 25 37 187
Construction in progress : 172 566 1,288
OB msnrmssamas 3,147 3,533 23,567
Total ... ¥30.286 ¥20,575 $226,810

Accumulated depreciation at March 31, 2023 and 2022, amounted to
¥36,528million ($273,556 thousand) and ¥37,015 million, respectively.

As of March 31, 2023 and 2022, deferred gains for tax purposes of ¥1,659
million ($12,424 thousand) and ¥1,660 million on premises and equipment
sold and replaced with similar assets have been deducted from the cost of new-
ly-acquired premises and equipment.

The Group reviews their long-lived assets for impairment continuously.
As of March 31, 2023 and 2022, the Bank recognized impairment losses of
¥325 million ($2,433 thousand) and ¥324 million as other expense for certain
branches, idle fixed assets and assets held for sale due to the carrying amounts
of the assets exceeding their recoverable amounts. As a result, the carrying
amounts of the relevant assets were written down to the recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of the discounted cash flows from the
continued use and eventual disposition of the asset or the net selling price at
disposition. The discount rate used for computation of the present value of
future cash flows ranged from 9.2% to 9.9% at March 31, 2023 and was from
7.9% 1o 9.6% at March 31, 2022.

The Group principally groups operating assets by branch office, which is the
minimum unit for management accounting. Idle fixed assets fixed assets and
assets held for sale are individually assessed for impairment.

The recoverable amount of operating assets, idle fixed assets and assets held
for sale are measured at their net selling price determined by quotations from
third-party vendors.

EfJ iNTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets as of March 31, 2023 and 2022, consisted of the following:

ASSETS PLEDGED

Assets pledged as collateral and their relevant liabilities at March 31, 2023 and
2022, were as follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
2023 2022 2023

Assets pledged as collateral:

Investment securities................. ¥581,110 ¥576,080 $4,351,905
Loans and bills discounted ....... 97,823
Relevant liabilities to above assets:

Deposits.....covevimremriciriisrcanens 14,820 19,161 110,986
Payables unde

repurchase agreements............. 47,902 16,827 358,735
Payables under securities

lending transactions.................. 83,698 138,405 626,810
Borrowed money........c..cooeueeee. 383,000 421,000 2,868,269

In addition, investment securities and others totaling ¥34,111 million
($255,455 thousand) and ¥37,334 million were pledged as collateral or secu-
tity deposits for exchange settlement and futures contracts at March 31, 2023
and 2022, respectively.

Guarantee deposits on office space amounting to ¥330 million ($2,471 thou-
sand) and ¥373 million were included in other assets at March 31, 2023 and
2022, respectively.

LOAN COMMITMENTS

Contracts of overdralt facilities and loan commitment limits are contracts where
the Group lends to customers up to the prescribed limits in response to cus-
tomers’ applications for loans as long as there is no violation of any condi-
tions in the contracts. The unused amounts within the limits totaled ¥654.,866
million ($4,904,261thousand) at March 31, 2023, and ¥668,522 million at
March 31, 2022, for these contracts. Of the above, the amounts for which the
original agreement period was within a year or agreements which the Group
could cancel at any time without penalty totaled ¥643,961 million ($4,822,594
thousand) at March 31, 2023, and ¥657,613 million at March 31, 2022.

Since many of these commitments expire without being drawn upon, the
unused amount does not necessarily represent a future cash requirement. Most
of these contracts have conditions where the Group can refuse a customers’
application for loans or decrease the contract limits with proper reasons (e.g.,
changes in financial situation, deterioration in customers' creditworthiness). At
the inception of the contracts, the Group obtains real estate, securities, etc., as
collateral if considered necessary. Subsequently, the Group performs periodic
reviews of the customers’ business results based on internal rules and rake nec-
essary measures to reconsider conditions in contracts and require additional
collateral and guarantees, if necessary.

DEPOSITS

Millions of Yen ARGRSS ol . .
U.S. Dollars Deposits at March 31, 2023 and 2022, consisted of the following;
2023 2022 2023

Software.... ¥580 Y784 $4,343 Millions of Yen T& ‘l”?;‘liﬁiﬁ;r

Other.. - 109 111 816 2023 2022 2023
Foltlammammanmnmns ¥689 ¥805 $5,159 Current deposits..........coeverrunnn. ¥ 145289 ¥ 139056 $ 1,088,062
Ordinary deposits..........cccceve.... 2,392,055 2,293,084 17,913,989
Savings at notice.. 24,917 25,043 186,602
Deposits at notice 4,792 4,840 35,887
CUSTOMERS’ LIABILITIES FOR ACCEPTANCES AND GUARANTEES Time deposits....... 827,941 839,652 6,200,411
Al contingent b ising f a fected § Installment savings..........c..coo..... 10,282 9,869 77,001
& {ties arising from acceplances and guarantees are reflecled In - naoqriable centificates of deposit.. 95,248 97,809 713,307
“Acceptances and guarantees.” As a contra account, “Customers’ liabilities for Other deposits .........coov.vvvinnn. 39,792 48,533 298,000
acceptances and guarantees” are shown on the assel side representing the Bank's Total s ¥3,540,319 ¥3457.890 $26,513.285

right of indemnity from the applicants.
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BORROWED MONEY
Borrowed money as of March 31, 2023 and 2022, consisted of the following;

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2023 2022 2023
Borrowings from other financial
TRStRHONSisemsaammmms ¥388,765 ¥426,984 $2.011 443
Total ..o ¥388,765 ¥426,984 $2,911,443

The weighted average interest rates of borrowings from other financial insti-
tutions were 0.00% and 0.00% at March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Annual maturities of long-term debt as of March 31, 2023, [or the next five
years and thereafter were as follows:

Millions of Yen ~ HOUSERS Of

Year Ending March 31 U.S. Dollars
¥ 39,204 $ 293,596
52,547 393,522
108,129 809,773
188,682 1,413,030
202 1,512
Total oo ¥388,765 $2.911.443

Please see Note 12 for assets pledged as collateral and their relevant bor-
rowed money.

(3) Reconciliation between the liability recorded in the consolidated balance
sheet and the balances of defined benefit obligation and plan assets

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2023 2022 2023
Funded defined benefit
obligation.........ccccce.uee. ¥ 31,756 ¥ 32,351 $ 237,819
Plan assets .vicinsmmiiiie. (34,289) (35.896) (256,788)
TOtal oo (2,533) (3,545) (18,969)
Unfunded defined benefit
obligation ..o 273 260 2,044
Net liability (asset) arising from
defined benefit obligation......... ¥ (2,259) ¥ (3,285) $ (16,917)
Millions of Yen TS g‘ﬁ;zﬁ;ﬁf
2023 2022 2023
Liability for retirement benefits... ¥ 6,825 ¥ 6,602 $ 51,112
Asset for retirement benefits...... (9,085) (9,887) (68,037)
Net liability (asset) arising from
defined benefit obligation......... ¥(2,259) ¥ (3.285) $(16,917)

{4) The components of net periodic benefit costs for the years ended March 31,
2023 and 2022, were as follows:

o Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollas
2023 2022 2023

RETIREMENT AND PENSION PLANS SEIVACE COBE wowiauiianasniiniis ¥979 ¥1,013 $7,331
. e . i Interest costoauuunmaninans 194 197 1,452
Consolidated subsidiaries have severance payment plans for employees, direc- Expected return on plan assets . (258) 474 (1.932)

tors and Audit & Supervisory Board members. The Bank terminated its retire- Recognized actuarial

ment benefits plan for directors and Audit & Supervisory Board members at the (gains) 10SeS s (170) (82) (1,273)
Net periodic benefit costs........... ¥744 ¥ 653 $5,571

Bank’s general shareholders meeting held on June 26, 2012.

Under most circumstances, employees whose service with the Group is ter-
minated are entitled 1o retirement and pension benefits determined by reference
to base rates of pay at the time of termination, length of service and conditions
under which the termination occurs. If the termination is involuntary, caused
by retirement at the mandatory retirement age or caused by death, the employee
is entitled to greater payment than in the case of voluntary termination.

The liability for retirement benefits for directors of consolidated subsidiar-
ies is ¥27 million ($202 thousand) and ¥29 million at March 31, 2023 and
2022, respectively.

(1) The changes in defined benefit obligation for the years ended March 31,
2023 and 2022, were as follows:

Millions of Yen Thotsancs ot

(5) Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income (before income tax
effect) in respect of defined retirement benefit plans for the years ended
Matrch 31, 2023 and 2022

Milions of Yen el
2023 2022 2023
Actuarial (gains) losses .............. ¥(770) ¥(1,501) $(5,766)
Total v ¥(770) ¥(1,501) $(5.766)

(6) Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (before
income tax effect) in respect of defined retirement benefit plans as of March
31, 2023 and 2022

U.S. Dollars

2023 o 20%3 Millions of Yen Thousands.of
Balance at beginning of year ...... ¥32,611 ¥33,165 $244,222 U.S. Dollars
Current Service Cost.......ceven... 979 1,013 7,331 2023 2022 2023
TLETESL €COSLavrrverrimrreeereieneeienaas 194 197 1,452 Unrecognized actuarial
Actuarial (gains) losses .. (388) (213) (2,905) CPRiteY 1088e8, v ¥797 ¥27 $5,968
Benefits paid.......... ) (1,366) (1.551) (10,229) Total wunamnenmngs ¥797 ¥27 $5.968
Balance at end of year................ ¥32,030 ¥32.611 $239.871

(2) The changes in plan assets for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022,
were as follows:

Millions of Yen Tl?;?sszﬁ:r:r
2023 2022 2023
Balance at beginning of year ...... ¥35,896 ¥37,928 $268,823
Expected return on plan assets.... 258 474 1,932
Actuarial gains (losses) ..... (988) (1,631) (7,399)
Benefits paid...........coccoiniieens (877) B741) (6,567)
Balance at end of year................ ¥34,289 ¥35,896 $256,788
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(7) Plan assets
a. Components of plan assets
Plan assets as of March 31, 2023 and 2022, consisted of the lollowing:

2023 2022
Blebt HiVeSTHBIIES ot 15% 15%
Equity investments...... 40 42
Cash and cash equivalents 0 0
(01311 1 B 45 43
TBEAL s vssvvvastnsvessinsissnsobedses i TS5 100% 100%

b. Method of determining the expected rate of return on plan assets
The expected rate of return on plan assets is determined considering the
long-term rates of return which are expected currently and in the future from
the various components of the plan assets.

(8) Assumptions used for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, were set
forth as follows:

2023 2022
DASCOUAL TALE: s vsinensimssssviniviasinns 1.4% 0.6%
Expected rate of retun on plan assets. 3 0.8 1.7
Expected rate of salary increases .........ccoccocovnenne 6.7 6.7

EQUITY

Japanese companies are subject to the Companies Act of Japan (the “Companies
Act”). The significant provisions in the Companies Act that affect financial and
accounting matters are summarized below:

(1) Dividends
Under the Companies Act, companies can pay dividends at any time during the
fiscal year in addition to the year-end dividend upon resolution at the share-
holders” meeting. For companies that meet certain criteria such as (1) having
a Board of Directors, (2) having independent auditors, (3) having a Board of
Audit & Supervisory Board members, and (4) the term of service of the direc-
tors being prescribed as one year rather than the normal two-year term by its
articles of incorporation, the Board of Directors may declare dividends (except
for dividends-in-kind) at any time during the fiscal year if the company has
prescribed so in its articles of incorporation. However, the Bank cannot do so
because it does not meet all the above criteria.

The Companies Act permits companies to distribute dividends-in-kind (noncash
assets) to shareholders subject to a certain limitation and additional requirements.

Semi-annual interim dividends may also be paid once a year upon resolu-
tion by the Board of Directors if the articles of incorporation of the company so
stipulate. The Companies Act and the Banking Law provides certain limitations
on the amounts available for dividends or the purchase of treasury stock.

(2) Increases / Decreases and Transfer of Common Stock, Reserve and Surplus
The Banking Law requires that an amount equal to 20% of dividends must
be appropriated as a legal reserve (a component of retained eamings) or as
additional paid-in capital (a component of capital surplus), depending on the
equity account charged upon the payment of such dividends until the aggregate
amount of legal reserve and additional paid-in capital equals 100% of the com-
mon stock. The Companies Act also provides that common stock, legal reserve,
additional paid-in capital, other capital surplus and retained earnings can be

transferred among the accounts under certain conditions upen resolution of
the shareholders.

(3) Treasury Stock and Treasury Stock Acquisition Rights

The Companies Act also provides for companies to purchase treasury stock
and dispose of such treasury stock by resolution of the Board of Directors.
The amount of treasury stock purchased cannot exceed the amount available
for distribution to the shareholders which is determined by a specific formula.
Under the Companies Act, stock acquisition rights are presented as a separate
component of equity. The Companies Act also provides that companies can
purchase both treasury stock acquisition rights and treasury stock. Such trea-
sury stock acquisition rights are presented as a separate component of equity or
deducted directly from stock acquisition rights.

STOCK OPTIONS

The stock options outstanding as of March 31, 2023, were as follows:

Number
Stock of Options Date of Exercise
Option _Persons Granted  Granted Grant Price Exercise Period

2013 10 directors
Sock  (excluding out- 14,480 August 19, ¥1 From August 20, 2013
Onti side directors) of shares 2013 (50.01) to August 19, 2043
ption b ek
e Ban

8 directors

(excluding
2014  non-permanent
Stock  directors) and
Option 8 executive

officers of the

Bank

7 directors

(excluding
2015 non-permanent
Stock  directors) and
Option 7 executive

officers of the

Bank

7 directors

(excluding
2016  non-permanent
Stock  directors) and
Option 7 executive

officers of the

Bank

16,210 August 18, ¥1 From August 19, 2014
shares 2014 ($0.01) to August 18, 2044

10,670 August 17, ¥1 From August 18, 2015
shares 2015 ($0.01) to August 17, 2045

18,300 August 22, ¥1 From August 23, 2016
shares 2016 ($0.01) to August 22, 2046

7 directors
(excluding
2017 non-permanent
Stock  directors) and
Option 7 executive
officers of the
Bank

12,100 August 28, ¥1 From August 29, 2017
shares 2017 ($0.01) to August 28, 2047

7 directors
(excluding
2018  non-permanent
Stock  directors) and
Option 7 executive
officers of the
Bank

14,380 August 27, ¥1 From August 28, 2018
shares 2018 ($0.01) 1o August 27, 2048

6 directors
(excluding
2019  non-permanent
Stock  directors) and
Option 6 executive
officers of the
Bank

15,350 August 26, ¥1 From August 27, 2019
shares 2019 ($0.01)  to August 26, 2049

6 directors
(excluding
2020  non-permanent
Stock  directors) and
Option 8 executive
officers of the
Bank

23,610 August 24, ¥1 From August 25, 2020
shares 2020 (50.01) to August 24, 2050

5 directors
(excluding
2021 non-permanent
Stock  directors) and
Option 8 executive
officers of the
Bank

31,450 August 23, ¥1 From August 24, 2021
shares 2021 ($0.01) to August 23, 2051

5 directors
(excluding
2022 non-permanent
Stock  directors) and
Option 8 executive
officers of the
Bank

28,330 August 22, ¥1 From August 23, 2022
shares 2022 ($0.01) o August 22, 2052
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The stock option activity during the year ended March 31, 2023, was as follows:

Year Ended March 31, 2023

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Stock Stock Stack Stock Stock
Option  Option  Option __ Option __ Option

Non-vested

March 31, 2022- Outstanding
Granted

Canceled

Vested

March 31, 2023- Outstanding

Vested
March 31, 2022- Ouwstanding

Vested

Exercised

Canceled

March 31, 2023- Qutstanding
Exercise price

Average stock price at exercise
Fair value price at grant date

(Shares)  (Shares) (Shares) (Shares) (Shares)

1460 1920 3230 7,140 6,710

950 620
1,460 1920 3,230 6,190 6,090

950 620
950 620
¥1 ¥1 ¥1 ¥1 ¥1

(50.01) (s0.01) ($0.01) ($0.01) (%0.01)
¥1,861 ¥1.861
¥2,700 ¥3,500 ¥5210 ¥2,050 ¥3910

Year Ended March 31, 2023

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Stock Stock Stock Stock Stock
Option  Option  Option _ Option __ Option

Non-vested

March 31, 2022- Quustanding
Granted

Canceled

Vested

March 31, 2023- Quistanding

Vested

March 31, 2022- Owstanding
Vested

Exercised

Canceled

March 31, 2023- Outstanding
Exercise price

Average stock price at exercise
Fair value price at grant date

(Shares) (Shares) (Shares) (Shares) (Shares)

7,990 10,360 18,550 31,450
28,330

740 1,070 2690 3970
7,250 9,200 15860 27,480 28,330

740 1,070 2,690 3,970
740 1,070 2,690 3,970

Y1 ¥1 Y1 ¥1 ¥l
($0.01) (50.01) ($0.01) (%0.01) ($0.01)
¥1.861 ¥1861 ¥1861 ¥1,861
¥3,632 ¥2,819 ¥2143 ¥1513 ¥1,701

Shares and per share figures have been restated, as appropriate, to veflect a

one-for-ten stock consolidation exercised on October 1, 2017.

The Assumptions Used to Measure the Fair Value of the 2022 Stock Option

Estimate method:
Volatility of stock price:

Estimated remaining outstanding period:

Estimated dividend:
Risk free interest rate:

Black-Scholes option pricing model
35.2%

Two years and nine months

¥80 per share

(0.08)%

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

General and administrative expenses for the years ended March 31,2023 and

2022, consisted of the following:

Millions of Yen Tll}g‘f%x:f
2023 2022 2023
¥11,941 ¥12.321 $89,425
15,188 14,864 113,742
¥27.130 ¥27.186 $203,175
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INCOME TAXES

The Group is subject to Japanese national and local income taxes which, in
the aggregate, resulted in normal effective statutory tax rates of approximately
30.5% for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022.

The tax effects of significant temporary differences which resulted in de-
ferred tax assets and liabilities at March 31, 2023 and 2022, were as follows:

Millions of Yen e i
2023 2022 2023

Deferred tax assets:

Reserve [or loan losses.............. ¥ 8,094 ¥8,983 $ 60,615
Liability for employees’

retirement benefits .................. 2,445 2,150 18,310
Depreciation s saisiises 1,766 1,748 13,225
Unrealized loss on

available- for-sale securities ... 2,330 17,449

3,491 3252 26,143

Less valuation allowance.......... (6,212) (6,492) (46,521)
Total oo 11,915 9,642 89,230
Deferred tax liabilities:

Unrealized gain on

available-for-sale securities ...... (2.989)

Unrealized gain on employees’

retirement benefit trust ............ (1,448) (1,448) (10,844)
Other...cooooveeeennene . (66) (803) (494)
Total -eev.ee. (1,514) (5,241) (11,338)
Net deferred tax assets (liability)... ¥10,400 ¥ 4401 $ 77.885

A reconciliation between the normal eflective statutory tax rates and the ac-
tual effective tax rates reflected in the accompanying consolidated statement of
income for the year ended March 31, 2023, with the corresponding figures for
2022 was as follows:

2023 2022
Normal effective statutory tax rate...............c....... 30.5% 30.5%
Expenses not deductible for income tax purposes .. 0.7 0.6
Income not taxable for income tax purposes........ (L.7) (1.6)
Valuafionallowahee s (3.8) (8.6)
L T o T Ty 1.4 1.8
Actual effective 1ax Tate oo 27.1% 22.7%

REVENUE

(1) Disaggregation of Revenue
Revenues from contracts with customers on a disaggregated basis for the year
ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, were as follows:

Millions of Yen
2023
Reportable Segment Recon-
Banking Leasing Total  Other ciliations Total

Fees and commissions:

Deposit and loan businesses..... ¥2844 ¥ 0¥ 284 ¥1044 ¥ 3,888
Exchange business................... 2477 2477 2477
Securities-related businesses.... 1,160 1,160 1,160
Agency businesses.................. 1,102 1,102 1,102
Other ..o 919 919 919
Other than fees and
COMBNISSIONS. .. scmimvssiimasvaisinvainss 95 95 610 706
Ordinary income from
contracts with customers.......... 8,599 0 8599 1,655 10,254
Ordinary income other
thant aDOVE: . ciriusmeins i 53,179 8,551 61,730 1219 ¥(299) 62,650
Ordinary income from
external customers ................. _¥61,778 ¥8,551 ¥70,320 ¥2874 ¥(299) ¥72.905

Millions of Yen
2022
Reportable Segment Recon-
Banking Leasing Total Other ciliations Total

Fees and commissions:

Deposit and loan businesses..... ¥ 2745 ¥ 0¥ 2745 ¥ 967 ¥ 3713
Exchange business................... 2523 2,523 2,523
Securities-related businesses.... 1,626 1,626 1,626
Agency businesses................... 520 520 520
618 618 618
Other than [ees and
COMIMISSIONS...veeeveriecereecenanes 104 104 614 718
Ordinary income {rom
contracts with customers.......... 8,137 0 8,138 1582 9,720
Ordinary income other
than above........covviiiiviee. 36,460 8245 44705 1,094 45,800
Ordinary income from
external customers ................. _¥44,598 ¥8.245 ¥52.844 ¥2,676 ¥55,520
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
2023
Reportable Segment Recon-

Banking Leasing Total Other ciliadons Total

Fees and commissions:

Deposit and loan businesses...... $21208 § 1521298 § 7818 $ 29117
Exchange business.................. 18,530 18,350 18,530
Securities-related businesses.... 8,687 8,687 8,687
Agency businesses.................. 8,252 8,252 8,232
OB s 6,882 6,882 6,882
Other than fees and
COMMISSIONS. ..covveiioieiiieriiienis 711 711 4568 $(2239) 5287
Ordinary income from
contracts with customers.......... 64,397 1 64397 12394 76,791
Ordinary income other
than above.........cooeee.. 398255 64038 462203 9129 469,182
Ordinary income from
external customers .................. §462,652 564,038 5526,600 $21,523 $(2,239) §545,98

Notes: 1. The “Other” segment is a business segment that is not included in reportable
segments and includes credit card services.

- The “Ordinary income other than above” includes income according to ASB|
Statement No. 10, “Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments” as well as
revenue according to ASB] Statement No. 13, “Accounting Standard for Lease
Transactions,”

3. A downward reconciliation in ordinary income other than above of ¥299 mil-
lion ($2,239 thousand) is made to adjust the gain on reversal of reserve for
loan losses for the year ended March 31, 2023.

4. As disclosed in Note 2.5 “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Change
the Display Method,” in “Banking,” dividend income from group credit life
insurance, etc. which was previously included in “Other income” has been
included in “Fees and commissions” since the current consolidated fiscal year
and the segment information for the previous fiscal year has been reclassified.

[

(2) Basic Information to Understand Revenues from Contracts with Customers
The information that provides the basis for understanding the revenue gener-
ated from contracts with customers is provided in Note 2.m, “Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies - Revenue Recognition.”

(3) Contract Balances
Receivables from contract with customers and contract liabilities at the begin-
ning and end of the year were as follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
2023 2022 2023

Receivables from contracts with
customers:

Balance at beginning of year ... ¥314 ¥306 $2,351

Balance at end of year.............. 420 314 3,145
Contract liabilities:

Balance at beginning of year .... 90 83 674

Balance at end of year.............. 90 90 674

Receivables from contract with customers are mainly accounts receivable
from fees and commissions received from customers.

Contract liabilities are a portion of the commission income received from
customers. Contract liabilities are transflerred to income as performance obliga-
tions are satisfied in connection with the provision of service transactions, etc.

Of the revenue recognized in the fiscal year under review, the amount includ-
ed in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the fiscal year was ¥90 million
($674 thousand) and ¥83 million at March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

(4) Transaction Prices Allocated to Remaining Performance Obligations

In the current consolidated fiscal year, there are no significant contracts with
customers that are expected to have an initial term of more than 1 year, and
accordingly, such notes are not stated in accordance with the treatment set
forth in paragraph 80-22 of the ASB] Statement No.29, “Accounting Standard
for Revenue Recognition.”

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

The components of other comprehensive income (loss) for the years ended
March 31, 2023 and 2022, were as follows:

= Thousands of
Millions of Yen US. Dollars
2023 2022 2023

Unrealized gain (loss) on

available-for- sale securities:

Gains (losses) arising during

the year ¥(35,615) ¥(18,043) $(266,719)
Reclassification adjustments to

profit or 1088 ......ovoveeeceee 18,213 4,992 136,396
Amount before income

T BB s (17,402) (13,051) (130,322)
Income tax effect........ccoconeneee. 5,319 4,007 39,833
B ¥(12,082) ¥ (8,953) $ (90,481)
Deferred gain (loss) on derivatives

under hedge accounting:

Gains (losses) arising during

T S ¥ 3,277 ¥ 1,649 $ 24,541
Reclassification adjusumnents to

profit-or loss s 216 78 1,617
Amount before income

taxetleet i iinaiiime (3,061) 1,728 (22,923)
Tncome tax effect .. 932 (526) (6,979)
Total e ¥ (2.128) ¥ 1202 $ (15,936)
Defined retirement benefit plans:

Adjustments arising during

the year...........c..... ¥ (599) ¥ (1,418) $ (4,485)

Reclassification adjusiments to

profit or loss.... (170) (82) (1,273)
Amount before income

P e SR (770) (1,501) (5,766)
Income tax effect.....cccocevicnnineas 234 457 1,752
Total e ¥ (535) ¥ (1,043) $  (4,006)

Total other comprehensive

income (loSS).....ccoovveveeeerinnn. ¥(14,747) ¥ (8,793) $(110.439)
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The reconciliation of cash and due from banks in the consolidated balance
sheet to cash and cash equivalents at March 31, 2023 and 2022, was as [ollows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2023 2022 2023
Cash and due from banks.......... ¥725,874 ¥9042 673 $5,436,036
Less deposits in other banks
except {or the Bank of Japan..... (2,189) (1,676) (16,393)
Cash and cash equivalents,
end-of Vead wuemmmaeinum ¥723,685 ¥940,996  $5,419,643

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

(1) Bank Policy for Financial Instruments
The Bank’s operations mainly include accepting deposits, providing loans,
discounting bills, and buying and selling marketable securities and other
financial instruments. Through these activities, the Bank holds substantial fi-
nancial assets and financial liabilities that are subject to fluctuations in inter-
est rates. To protect itself from the negative effects of interest rate fluctuations,
the Bank conducts derivative transactions as part of its asset and liability
management (ALM) activities.

In addition, the consolidated subsidiaries that engage in leasing and credit
card businesses handle financial instruments as their principal business.

(2) Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments

Of the principal financial assets held by the Group, loans are subject to credit
risk, or default on the part of the customer. The Group holds trading account
securities and investment securities, for holding to maturity and for purely
trading purposes, as well as to promote business activities. These securities
are subject to issuer credit risk, interest rate fluctuation risk and market price
fluctuation risk.

Of financial liabilities, deposits and borrowed money are subject to liquidity
risk, or the possibility that the Group may become unable to meet payment
obligations when due in the event that they become unable to utilize markets
in certain circumstances.

Among derivative transactions, the Bank employs interest rate swap transac-
tions to hedge risk using ALM. To offset the risk of interest rate increases, the
Bank employs variable receip/fixed payment and fired receipt/variable pay-
ment interest rate swap transactions on loans bearing long-term, fixed rates of
interest, and securities.

With respect to currencies, the Bank employs currency swap transactions,
forward exchange contracts and coupon swap transactions, primarily to hedge
the exchange rate fluctuation risks on foreign currency assets and liabilities.

The Bank engages in bond futures transactions, mainly as part of its dealing
operations. With regard to the methods of hedge accounting for interest risks
on financial assets and liabilities, the Bank employs deferred hedge accounting
as provided in t the JICPA Industry Committee Practice Guidance No. 24. To
evaluate hedging effectiveness, for hedges designed to offset market fluctua-
tions, the Bank performs specified evaluations of hedged loans at individual
hedge stages grouped by (remaining) term.

The consolidated subsidiaries do not conduct derivative transactions.

(3) Risk Management for Financial Instruments

Credit risk management

The Bank has in place various provisions, including a Credit Risk Manage-
ment Policy and Credit Risk Management Provisions. These provisions, which
extend beyond lending activities and include market transactions and off-bal-
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ance-sheet assets, are in place to manage credit risks related to all manners of
banking operations. For each activity, the Bank conducts credit screenings,
manages credit limits, manages credit information and employs an internal rat-
ing system. The Bank also has in place a credit management system to support
managenment improvements and handle loans that have become delinquent or
present collection difficulties. The consolidated subsidiaries also have in place
various credit risk management and other provisions. They act in accordance
with these provisions to manage credit risks appropriately.

To manage these credit risks, the Group has established credit risk man-
agement divisions, including screening divisions, credit management divisions
and problem loan management divisions. The Bank’s Risk Management Di-
vision takes overall responsibility for credit risk management, including the
status of credit risk and accompanying problems.

With regard to credit screening, the Bank’s Audit Division checks the Bank’s
Risk Management Division and each risk management division to ascertain the
appropriateness of credit risk management.

Market risk management

The Bank has in place a system for managing market risk. All items that re-
quire market risk management, including deposit and loan transactions, mar-
ket transactions and off-balance-sheet transactions, are managed in accordance
with the Bank’s Market Risk Management Policy and Market Risk Manage-
ment Provisions. The ALM divisions manage market risk related to deposits
and loans, while market-related divisions mainly manage market risk related 1o
market transactions. The Bank’s Risk Management Division provides compre-
hensive reports to the Risk Management Committee indicating risk amounts,
stress test results and other information. Market Risk Management Policy and
Provisions are also in place at consolidated subsidiaries, in line with each com-
pany’s risk profile. In this manner, systems are in place to ensure the appropri-
ate management of marker risk.

The market risk management divisions of the Group manages market risks
in this way and the Bank’s Risk Management Division serves as the central divi-
sion for the management of market risk and addressing related problems.

With regard to audits of market risk management, the Bank's Audit Division
checks the Bank’s Risk Management Division and each market risk manage-
ment division to ascertain the appropriateness of market risk management.

(Quantitative information concerning market rishs)

Major financial instruments held by the Bank, which are subject to the primary
risk parameters such as interest rate risk and price fluctuation risk, are loans,
securities (held-to-maturity debt securities and other securities), deposits and
negotiable certificates of deposit, and interest rate swap transactions in deriva-
tive transactions.

For these financial assets and financial liabilities, the Bank estimates the
amount of loss that they will have after specific periods of time by using a
statistical method and assumes it as the market risk quantities. Also, the Bank
employs it as a quantitative analysis o manage the risk of interest rate and price
fluctuation. Value at Risk (VaR) is used to calculate the impact amount.

A historical simulation model has heen adopted for the current fiscal year 1o
measure VaR. The conditions are an observation period of 1,250 business days,
a confidence interval of 99%, and a holding period of 60 business days (125
business days [or strategic holdings).

As of March 31, 2023, the Bank’s market risk (estimated loss value) on ma-
jor financial instruments was ¥38,197million ($286,055 thousand). Of this
amount, ¥27,356 million ($204,867 thousand) was attributable to securities
and ¥10,841 million ($81,187 thousand) was attributable to instruments other
than securities, such as deposits and loans.

The Bank also conducts back-testing, by comparing the VaR calculated us-
ing this model with actual profits or losses. During the consolidated fiscal year
under review, back-testing demonstrated that its approximation model was
sulficiently precise to capture market risk.

However, it is important to recognize that VaR estimation is a calculation
based on a statistical process, and that resulis may differ depending on the
preconditions and calculation methods used. Further, this process does not
forecast maximum losses, and future market conditions may differ substantially
from past conditions.

Furthermore, quantitative analysis is not applied Lo certain financial instru-
ments whose impact is immaterial or those held by consolidated subsidiaries.

Liguidity risk management
The Bank manages liquidity risk in accordance with its Liquidity Risk Manage-
ment Policy and Liquidity Risk Management Provisions. The Market Financing
Division manages cash on a daily basis, and the Bank's Risk Management Divi-
sion, which serves as the management division, monitors this risk, providing
comprehensive reports to the Risk Management Committee including the status
of risks, the status of assets available for payment, the results of stress tests and
other information.

With regard to audits of liquidity risk management, the Bank’s Audit Division
checks the Bank’s Risk Management Division and each liquidity risk manage-
ment division to ascertain the appropriateness of liquidity risk management.

(4) Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Fair values of financial instruments are as follows: Investments in equity in-
struments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market are not
included in the following table. The fair values of cash and due from banks,
payables under repurchase agreements, and payables under securities lending
transactions are not disclosed because their maturities are short and the carry-
ing values approximate fair value. Also, please see Note 25 [or details of the fair
values of derivatives.

(a) Fair value of financial instruments

Millions of Yen
Carrying Fair
Amount Value

Unrealized
March 31, 2023 Gain (Loss)
Investment securities:

Held-to-maturity securities................ ¥ 80,480 ¥ 79439 ¥ (1,041)
Available-for-sale securities... 1,294,353 1,294,353

Loans and bills discounted ........................ 2,092,111

Reserve for loan losses (*1)....oeeeveeeenn.. (22,262)
2,060,848 2,059,015  (10,832)
O s cxoommvmsmsmsmssse i R ¥3,444,683 ¥3.432,808 ¥(11,874)
DEDOSTS s b sna ¥3,540,319 ¥3540370 ¥ 51
Borrowed money.. 388,765 388,734 (30)
TOtal .o ¥3,929.085 ¥3929.105 ¥ 20
Derivative instruments (*2):
Hedge accounting is not applied ........... ¥ (10,119)¥ (10,119)
Hedge accounting is applied...........cc....... (289) (289)
Total e ¥ (10,409) Y (10,409)
Millions of Yen
Carrying Fair Unrealized
March 31, 2022 Amount Value Gain (Loss)
Investment securities:
Held-to-maturity securities............... ¥ 59,817 ¥ 59,289 ¥(528)
Available-for-sale securities...................... 1,215,037 1,215,037
Loans and bills discounted ...................... 1,972,040
Reserve for loan losses (*1) (24,872)
1,947 167 1,048,559 1,301
Tl it msmnsesmensansasnessssarsansmns ¥322202) ¥322)886 ¥ 863

Deposits........ ettt ettt ¥3,457,890 ¥3,457,983 ¥ 93
Borrowed money ..o 426,984 426,957 27
TOMAL e ¥3.884,875 ¥3,884,941 ¥ 66
Derivative instruments (*2):
Hedge accounting is not applied ............. ¥ (12,356) ¥ (12,356)
Hedge accounting is applied (*3) ............. 2,855 2,855
TOAL 1 eeverii ittt ¥ (95000 ¥ (9,500
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Carrying Fair Unrealized
March 31, 2023 Amount Value Gain (Loss)
Investment securities:
Held-to-maturity securities..........c..c..co..... $ 602,711 $§ 594915 S (7,796)
Available-for-sale securities.. 9,693,349 9,693,349
Loans and bills discounted ... 15,667,722
Reserve for loan losses (*1)...... (166,719)
15,500,996 15,419,868 (81,120)
TOtal ceoeccccccce .. $25,797,071 $25,708,140 $(88,923)
DEPOSIS..oocssenmannmamaann: SU03.285 '$26:513 667 s 381

Borrowed money.........
Fotal o,

2011443 2911210 (224)
$29,424.736 $29.424,885 $ 149

Derivative instruments (*2):

Hedge accounting is not applied ... $§ (75,780) $  (75,780)
Hedge accounting is applied (2,164) 2,164
Total v .8 (77952) S (77.952)

(*1) Reserve for loan losses relevant to loans and bills discounted have been deducted.

(*2) Derivative instruments are disclosed in the net amount of assets and liabilities.

(*3) Interest rate swaps designated as hedging instruments for securities that are hedged,
and deferred hedges are applied. For these hedging relationships, the “PITF No.40
for Practical Solution on the Treatment of Hedge Accounting lor Financial Instru-
ments that Reference LIBOR” is applied.

(b) Carrying amount of investments in equity instruments that do not have a
quoted markel price in an active market

s Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2023 2022 2023
Equity securities...........cccocevene ¥ 2235 ¥ 2,134 $ 16,737
OHET s 11,132 10,694 83,367
Tatal o isTas ¥13,367 ¥12.828 $100.104

(5) Maturity Analysis for Financial Assets and Securities with Contractual
Maturities

Millions of Yen
Due alter Due after
One Year Five Years
Due in One through Five through Ten  Due after
March 31, 2023 Year or Less Years Years Ten Years
Due from banks..... ¥ 696,147
Investment securities:
Held-to-maturity securities.... ¥ 50,600 ¥ 19,155 ¥ 11,000
Available-for-sale securities ... 162,693 441,531 278,396 265,944
Loans and bills discounted (*)... 471,809 598,932 393,675 590,249
Totaluuuunsmaamaivimems ¥1,330.650 ¥1,091.063 ¥691.227 ¥867,193
Millions of Yen
Due after Due after
One Year  Five Years
Due in One through Five through Ten  Due after
March 31, 2022 Year or Less Years Years Ten Years
Due from banks.. ¥ 910,181
Investment securities:
Held-to-maturity securities.... ¥ 40000 ¥ 0755 ¥ 10,000
Available-for-sale securities ... 119,790 387,265 205,346 302,176
Loans and bills discoumted (*)... 475,144 589,583 360,965 505,985
i - | e ¥1,505,117 ¥1016.848  ¥666,067 ¥818.161
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Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Due after Due after
One Year  Five Years
Due in One through Five through Ten  Due after
Year or Less Years Years Ten Years

$5,213,412

March 31, 2023

Due from banks....
Investment securities:
Held-to-maturity securities.... $ 378941 § 143450 § 82378
Available-for-sale securities ... 1218400  3306,605 2,084,894 1991642
Loans and bills discounted (*)... 3533355 4485374 2948213 4420347
Totaloiiriciiieceicc i, $9,965,176 $8,170,920 53,176,567 $6,494.368

(*) Excluded from the loan amount for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, were
¥37,444 million ($280,416 thousand) and ¥40,360 million, respectively, in loans
classified as “possible bankruptey,” “virtual bankruptey” and “legal bankruptey” on
which the redemption amount cannot be forecasted.

(6) Maturity Analysis for Deposits with Contractual Maturities

Millions of Yen
Due after Due after
One Year  TFive Years
Due in One through Five through Ten Due alter

March 31, 2023 Year or Less Years Years Ten Years
Deposits ....ccovcivvieciiinnn. ¥3,339,486  ¥199,640 ¥1,192
Millions of Yen

Due after Due after
One Year  Five Years
Due in One through Five through Ten  Due after
March 31, 2022 Year or Less Years Years Ten Years

DepOsits ...oocommmssmisssoasisisisios ¥3239713  ¥216.870 ¥1,306

Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Due after Due after
One Year Five Years
Due in One through Five through Ten  Due aflter
Year or Less Years Years Ten Years

$25,009,256  $1,495,094 $8,926

March 31, 2023
Deposits ..o

Please see Note 15 for annual maturities of borrowed money.

(7) Financial Instruments Categorized by Fair Value Hierarchy

The fair value of financial instruments is categorized into the following three
levels, depending on the observability and significance of the inputs used in
making fair value measurements:

Level 1: Fair values measured by using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Fair values measured by using inputs other than quoted prices in-
cluded within Level 1 that are observable [or the assets or liabilities,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Fair values measured by using unobservable inputs [or the assets or
liabilities.

If multiple inputs are used that have a significant impact on the measure-
ment of fair value, fair value is categorized at the lowest level in the fair value
measurement among the levels to which
each of these inputs belongs.

(a) The financial assets and liabilities measured at the fair values in the con-
solidated balance sheet

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Marketable and investment

securities:

Available-for-sale securities:

Japanese government bonds..... ¥202,673 ¥ 202,673
Local government bonds........... ¥263,014 263,014
Corporate bonds ..... 221,669  ¥11,712 233381
Equity securities 75,701 1,384 77,086
Other ........ 80,410 398,482 39,304 518,197

Total assets....

¥358,786 ¥ 884.551 ¥51,016 ¥1294353
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Derivative transactions (*2):

Interest rate SWaps..........ccooecveeeee ¥ (289) ¥ (289)
Foreign currency forward
COTLTALES......ocvinis (10,119) (10,119)
Total liabilities....... ¥(10.409) ¥ (10,409)
Millions of Yen
March 31, 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Marketable and investment
securities:
Available-for-sale securities:
Japanese government bonds..... ¥233,149 ¥ 233,149
Local government bonds .. . ¥251,799 251,799
Corporate bonds 234,404 ¥11,348 245752
Equily securities 66,465 1,156 67,621
Other (*1)...cc........ 43,804 114,155 49,652 207,702
Total assets.......cccooovivevecien. ¥343500 ¥601,516 ¥61,001 ¥1,006,026
Derivative transactions (*2):
Interest rate SWaps............ocounea. ¥ 2855 ¥ 2855
Foreign currency forward
CONLTacIs...... ; (12,356) (12,356)
Total liabilities ¥ (9.500) ¥ (9.500)
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
March 31, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Marketable and investment
securities:
Available-for-sale securities:
Japanese government bonds...... $1,517,808 $1,517,808
Local government bonds .......... $1,969,699 1,969,699
Corporate bonds 1,660,068 $ 87,710 1,747,779
Equity securities 566,921 10,364 577,293
Other .........ccoo.... 602,186 2,984,213 294,345 3,880,753
Toral AssBI8L o scesmmasivaen $2,686,931 $6,624,361  $382,056 $9,693,349
Derivative transactions (*2):
Interest rate SWaps........coo.oeeevcae $ (2,164) 5 (2,164)
Foreign currency forward
CONLIACIS. ... (75,780) (75,780)
Total liabilities $ (77,952) $ (77,952)

(*1) Investment trusts to which the transitional measures set forth in Paragraph 26 of
the ASBJ Guidance No. 31, “Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for
Fair Value Measurement” have been applied are not included in the above table.
The amount of the relevant investment trust in the consolidated balance sheet for
the years ended March 31, 2022 is ¥209,011 million.

(*2) Derivative instruments are disclosed in the net amount of assets and liabilities.

(b) The financial assets and liabilities not measured at the fair values in the
consolidated balance sheet

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Toral
Marketable and investment
securities:
Held-to-maturity securities:
Japanese government bonds..... ¥10,047 ¥ 10,047
Local government bonds .. . ¥ 517396 51,396
Corporate bonds ...................... 17,995 17,995

Loans and bills discounted ........... ¥2,059,015 2,059,015

Total As8e18 e s ¥10,047 ¥ 69,391 ¥2059,015 ¥2138454
Deposits ¥3,540,370 ¥3,540,370
Borrowed money. 388,734 388,734

Total habilities.............cocorvvrenve.n. ¥3.929.,105 ¥3,929.105

Millions of Yen
March 31, 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Marketable and investment
securilies:
Held-to-maturity securities:
Japanese government bonds...... ¥9,564 ¥ 9564
Local government bonds .......... ¥ 34226 34,226
Corporate bonds ...................... 15,498 15,498
Loans and bills discounted............ ¥1,948,559 1948559
TOtal A8pt: oo ¥0564 ¥ 40725 ¥1948559 ¥2007.848

Deposits .....c.ccc.... ¥3,457,983 ¥3,457,983
Borrowed money ... 426,957 426,957
Total liabilities.................coco.cc..... ¥3,884 941 ¥3,884.941
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
March 31, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Marketable and investment
securities:
Held-to-maturity securities:
Japanese government bonds ..... §75,241 $ 73241
Local government honds § 384,902 384,902
Corporate bonds ...........c.......... 134,763 134,763
Loans and bills discounted........... $15,419,868 15,419,868
Total assels ... §75241 § 519,665 $15,419,.868 $16.014.783
Deposits §26,513,667 $26,513,667
Borrowed money.......ocooovuinninn. 2911210 2911.210

Total liabilities..... §29.424 885 $29.424.885

The following is a description of valuation methodologies and inputs used for
measurement of the fair value of assets and liabilities:

Investment Securities

Securities with unadjusted quoted prices in active markets are categorized as
Level 1. Listed stocks, government bonds, and investment trusts are mainly
included.

Il the market is not active, even if the announced market price is used, it is
categorized as Level 2. This mainly includes local government bonds and cor-
porate bonds.

For investment trusts for which there is no market transaction price, if there
are no significant restrictions to the extent that market participants are required
to pay consideration for the risk in the event of cancellation or repurchase, the
net asset value is used as fair value and categorized as Level 2.

In addition, privately placed bonds guaranteed by the Bank for which mar-
ket prices are not available, the fair value is calculated by discounting the total
amount of principal and interest by the interest rate assumed in the case of
similar new issuance for each categorization based on internal ratings and ma-
turity, and is categorized as Level 3.

Certain other securities with no published quoted prices are categorized as
Level 2 or Level 3 based on the market prices obtained from external traders
(brokers, etc.) and the inputs used therein.

Loans and Bills Discounted

The fair value of loans is calculated by discounting the tatal amount of principal
and interest by the discount rate reflecting the credit risk, etc. in the market
interest rate for each category based on the type of loan, internal rating and
period. In the case ol variable interest rates, the fair value is used to reflect
market interest rates in a short period of time. Therefore, if the credit status of
the borrower does not differ significantly after the loan is executed, the book
value is used as the fair value because the book value is similar to the fair value.

The [air value of loans provided to entities that are classified as legal bank-
ruptey, virtual bankruptey ot possible bankruptcy are determined according
to the current value of expected future cash flows or the amount of collateral
that is expected to be recoverable or guarantee amounts that are determined to
be recoverable. As these amounts are nearly identical to the book value after
deducting the allowance for doubtful accounts, these amounts are assumed to
be their fair value.

These fair values are categorized as Level 3.

Deposits

For demand deposits, [air value is assumed to be the amount to be paid when
demanded on the balance sheet date (i.e., the book value). The fair value of
time deposits is determined by segmenting such deposits by term and dis-
counting future cash flows to their current value. The discount rate used is the
rate of interest on new deposits of the same type. As the term on the deposits
are short-term in nature, book value approximates fair value, so their hook
value is assumed to be their fair value.

These fair values are categorized as Level 2.

Borrowed Money

For borrowed money, interest rates on (loating-rate borrowings reflect short-
term market interest rates. The credit conditions of the Group has not changed
significantly since the time of barrowing, and as such, book value approxi-
mates fair value. So their book value is assumed to be their fair value. Such
borrowings with fixed interest rates are segmented by term, the total amount
of principal and interest on the borrowed money is divided by time period,
and their present value is calculated by discounting according to the assumed
interest rate. For items with a short commitment term (within three months),
as their book value approximates fair value, their book value is assumed to be
their fair value.
These fair values are categorized as Level 2.

Derivatives
Exchange traded transactions are categorized as Level 1, with the [air value be-
ing the final price at the exchange.

Over-the-counter transactions are categorized as Level 2, with the fair value
calculated using the present value of future cash flows using inputs such as
interest rates and foreign exchange rates.

Information on the fair value of Level 3 financial instruments stated on the
consolidated balance sheet at fair value.

(c) Quantitative information on important unobservable inputs

Significant Weighted-
Valuation  unobserv- Range of  average of
March 31, 2023 technique  able inputs inputs. inputs
Marketable and investment
securilies:
Available-for-sale securities:
Corporate bonds (privately Discounted
placed bonds guaranteed cash flow  Discount  From 0.3%
By e Btk o *) rate to 1.6% 0.8%
Significant Weighted-
Valuation  unohserv- Range of  average of
March 31, 2022 technique  able inputs inputs inputs
Marketable and investment
securities:
Available-for-sale securities:
Corporate bonds (privaely Discounted
placed bonds guaranteed cash low  Discount  From 0.3%
by the Bakd e ) rate to 1.6% 0.7%

(*) The fair value of corporate bonds provided to entities that are classified as legal
bankruptey, virtual bankruptey or possible bankruptcy are determined according to
the current value of expected future cash flows or the amount of collateral that is ex-
pected to be recoverable or guarantee amounts that are determined to be recoverable.
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(d) A veconciliation of the beginning balance and the ending balance and unrealized gain (loss) recognized in net income or loss

Millions of Yen

Change in
unrealized gains
(losses) included

in net income
for financial
Includedin  Changes due assets and liabili-
other compre-  to purchases, Transfersinto  Transfers out ties still held a
Included innet hensive income issues, sales and  fair value of  of fair value of March 31, 2023
March 31, 2023 April 1,2022  income (*1) {loss) (*2) settlements Level 3 (*3) Level 3 (*4) March 31, 2023 (*1)
Marketable and investment securities:
Available-for-sale securities:
Corporate bonds ..o ¥11,348 ¥ (45) ¥ 408 ¥11,712
Other o 49,652 ¥600 (158) (10,791) 39,304
Millions of Yen
Change in
unrealized gains
(losses) included
in net income
for financial
Included in Changes due assets and liabili-
other compre- 1o purchases, Transfersinto  Transfers out ties still held a
Included in net hensive income issues, sales and  fair value of  of fair value of March 31,2022
March 31, 2022 Aprl 1,2021  income (*1) {loss) (*2) settlements Level 3 (*3) Level 3 (*4) March 31, 2022 (51}
Marketable and investment securities:
Available-for-sale securities:
Corporate bonds ................ ¥11,849 ¥ (¢7 ¥ (35 ¥(418) ¥11,348
Other ..o 72,234 2,266 (640) (466) ¥(23,740) 49,652 ¥(3)
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Change in
unrealized gains
(losses) included
in net income
for financial
Included in Changes due assets and liabili-
other compre-  to purchases,  Transfersinto  Transfers out ties still held a
Included in net hensive income issues, sales and  fair value of  of fair value of March 31, 2023
March 31, 2023 April1,2022  income (*1) (loss) (*2) settlements Level 3 (*3) Level 3 (*4) March 31, 2023 (*1)
Marketable and investment securities:
Available-for-sale securities:
Corporate bonds..cinvnmammnmnuans . '$ 84,984 $ (337) § 3,055 $ 87,710
OUhET Lo 371,841 $4,493 (1,183) (80,813) 294,345

(*1) Included in “Other operating income” and “Other operating expenses” in the consolidated statement of income.
(*2) Included in “Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities” in “Other comprehensive income (loss)” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
(*3) The transfer is from Level 2 to Level 3 due to changes in the observability of the inputs used to calculate fair value. The transfer was made on the last day of the current con-

solidated fiscal year.

(*4) The wransfer is from Level 3 to Level 2 and is due to changes in the observability of the inpurs used to calculate fair value. The transfer was made on the last day of the current

consolidated fiscal year.

(e) Explain about the valuation process of fair value

At the Group, the back division and the middle division establish policies and
procedures related to the calculation of fair values and procedures related to
the use of the fair value model, and each division calculates fair values in ac-
cordance with these policies and procedures. The fair values calculated are
verified by an independent valuation department to verify the appropriateness
of the valuation techniques and inputs used to calculate the fair values and the
appropriateness of the categorization of the level of fair values.

In cases where market prices obtained [rom third parties are used, the appro-
priateness of the prices is verified by appropriate methods such as confirmation
of the valuation techniques and inputs used and comparison with the market
prices of similar financial instruments.
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(f) Explanation about effect on fair value of changing a significant unobserv-
able input

The discount rate is an adjustment rate to standard market interest rates such
as swap rates, and mainly consists of risk premiums, which are the amount of
compensation required by market participants for the uncertainty of cash flows
of financial instruments arising from credit risk. In general, a significant in-
crease (decrease) in the discount rate results in a significant decrease (increase)
in the fair value.

DERIVATIVES
The Bank’s policy is Lo use derivative financial instruments (“derivatives”) primar-
ily for the purpose of reducing market risk associated with its assets and liabilities.

The Bank enters into interest rate swaps as a means ol hedging ils interest
rate risk on certain loans and investment securities. The Bank also enters into
foreign exchange forward contracts and currency swaps to hedge exchange
risk associated with its assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies.

Derivatives are subject to market risk and credit risk. Market risk is the
exposure created by potential fluctuations of market conditions, including in-
terest and foreign exchange rates. Credit risk is the possibility that a loss may
result from a counterparty’s failure to perform under a contract. Because the
counterparties Lo these derivatives are limited to major financial institutions
and securities companies, the Bank does not anticipate material losses arising
from credit risk.

Concerning risk management associated with derivative transactions, the
front and back offices of the trading divisions (the Market Financing Division)
are clearly separated, while the Asset and Liabilities Management Office syn-
thetically manages the Bank's market risks. In this manner, an internal moni-
toring system is effectively secured. Derivative transactions entered into by
the Bank have been made in accordance with internal policies, which regulate
the trading activities, and credit risk management has formal risk limits and
credit lines. The Bank’s gains and losses on positions and other conditions are
periodically reported to management.

(1) Derivative Transactions to Which Hedge Accounting Is Not Applied

(2) Derivative Transactions to Which Hedge Accounting Is Applied

Millions of Yen

Contract
Amount Due
Hedged Contract  after One Fair
March 31, 2023 ltem Amount Year Value
Interest rate swaps
(floating rate payment,  Available-for-
fixed rate receipt) ......... sale securities
(fixed rate payment, (debt securities)
floating rate receipt) ..... ¥30,000 ¥30,000 ¥(289)
Millions of Yen
Contract
Amount Due
Hedged Contract alter One Fair
March 31, 2022 Ttem Amount Year Value
Interest rate swaps
(floating rate payment,  Available-for-sale
fixed rate receipt) ......... securities (debt
(fixed rate payment, securities)
floating rate receipt) ..... ¥45,000  ¥45,000 ¥2 855
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Contract
Amount Due
Hedged Contract after One Fair
March 31, 2023 ltem Amount Year Value
Interest rate swaps
(Moating rate payment, Available-for-

fixed rate receipt) ......... sale securities
(hxed vate payment, (debt securities)
loating rate receipt) ..... $224,668 $224.668 $(2,164)

The contract or notional amounts of derivatives which are shown in the
above table do not represent the amounts exchanged by the parties and do not
measure the Bank’s exposure to credit or market risk.

Millions of Yen
Contract
Amount Due
Contract after One Fair Unrealized
March 31, 2023 Amount Year Value Gain (Loss)
Currency swaps...................... ¥114,835 ¥ 66,765 ¥(8,088) ¥(8,988)
Coupon swaps........co.oee. 170,329 127,805 167 167
Foreign currency
forward contracts:
L) 17 SRR 59,502 462 (1,431) (1,431)
Byingenmmsmsaesag 8,820 132 132
Millions of Yen
Contract
Amount Due
Contract after One Fair Unrealized
March 31, 2022 Amount Year Value Gain (Loss)
CUITENCY SWAPS..ccvcnveree. ¥107,703 ¥ 67,314 ¥(B470)  ¥(8,470)
Coupon SWaps........c...ccoueeeenns 130,151 122,113 183 183
Foreign currency
forward contracts:
Selling oo 65,449 9 (4,069) (4,069)
BOFINE oo 8,422 0 0
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Contract
Amount Due
Contract after One Fair Unrealized
March 31, 2023 Amount Year Value Gain (Loss)
Currency swaps......o..o........... $ 839,994  $500,000 $(67,310) $(67,310)
Coupon swaps....ccocccovvne. 1,275,586 957,125 1,250 1,250
Foreign currency
forward contracts:
Selling e ain i 445,607 3,459 (10,716)  (10,716)
Buying......ooooooooviiiee 66,052 988 988

B SEGMENT INFORMATION

ASB] Statement No. 17, “Accounting Standard for Segment Information Dis-
closures” and ASB] Guidance No. 20, “Guidance on Accounting Standard for
Segment Information Disclosures,” an entity is required to report financial and
descriptive information about its reportable segments. Reportable segments are
operaling segments or aggregations of operating segments that meet specified
criteria. Operating segments are components of an entity about which separate
financial information is available and such information is evaluated regularly by
the chiefl operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and
in assessing performance. Generally, segment information is required to be re-
ported on the same basis as is used internally for evaluating operating segment
performance and deciding how to allocate resources to operating segments.

(1) Description of Reportable Segments

The Group'’s reportable segments are those for which separate financial informa-
tion is available and regular evaluation by the Board of Directors is performed in
order to decide how management resources are allocated and in assessing per-
formance. The Group concentrates on the hanking business, and also conduct
other financial services including the leasing and the credit card businesses.
Therefore, the Group's reportable segments consist of Banking and Lease.

(2) Methods of Measurement for the Amounts of Ordinary Income, Profit, As-
sets and Other Items for Each Reportable Segment

The accounting policies of each reportable segment are consistent with those

disclosed in Note 2, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.”
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(3) Information about Ordinary Income, Profit, Assets and Other Items

Millions of Yen

2023
Reportable Segment
Banking Leasing Total Other Total Reconciliations  Consolidated
Ordinary income:
Ordinary income from external customers ..........ccccccevceeeeee. ¥ 61,778 ¥ 8,551 ¥ 70,329 ¥ 2874 ¥ 73,204 ¥ (299) ¥ 72905
Intersegment ordinary income 255 150 406 641 1,047 (1,047)
Botdlunmasisnsimsmsimaesiesasapancs ¥ 1625033 ¥ 8702 ¥ 70,736 ¥ 3516 ¥ 74252 ¥ (1347) ¥ 72905
SEEMENT PIOMAL. evrerer vt ent sttt tes e e ces ¥ 6,521 ¥ 189 ¥ 6,710 ¥ 1,094 ¥ 7,805 ¥ (8) ¥ 7,79
SEMMETIL ABSOTE. ..os commsvanmammnsamyviniisiss rsssssmvastiaise s iR adis 4,303,547 22,922 4,326,469 19,988 4,346,457 (22,069) 4,324,388
Other:
Bttt s rr s A S T 1,375 105 1,481 56 1,537 (0) 1,536
Total interest ihcome .ot sina Sumuniamsg 43,029 12 43,041 1,126 44,168 (48) 44,119
Total interest expenses .. 1,933 56 1,989 3 1,993 (38) 1,954
Impairment losses of assets 2,785 147 2,933 33 2,966 (0 2,965
Increase in premises and equipment and intangible assets..... 325 325 325 325
Millions of Yen
2022
Reportable Segment
Banking Leasing Total Other Toral Reconciliations  Consolidated
Ordinary income:
Ordinary income from external customers ... ¥ 44,598 ¥ 8245 ¥ 53844 ¥ 2676 ¥ 55520 ¥ 55520
Intersegment ordinary iNCOME.......cccoerimmieeerereererarceees 264 153 417 509 927 ¥ (92D
Total e nanmmannnrnninsnineaniamamig, £ 44862 ¥ 8398 ¥ 53261 ¥ 3,186 ¥ 56,448 ¥ (927) ¥ 55520
SEEMENT PLOfil....ivriecrieciiiecrienseserreneseserersns s eenecensene ¥ 6,184 ¥ 212 ¥ 6,396 ¥ 866 ¥ 7,263 ¥ (16) ¥ 7.246
SR FTIEHIL BEEETS o orismsisssasmin s S s i ks ot b 4,290,382 22,695 4,313,078 18,855 4,331,033 (21,363) 4,310,569
Other:
Depreciation . sumsminatisniimiss i s usapg 1,501 98 1,600 63 1,664 [¢8) 1,662
TOtal INTETEST INCOMIE ....ee et eeeeeee e eeeeeseeeeneeneenns 32,661 12 32,673 1,070 33,744 (48) 33,695
Total interest expenses ..... 474 54 528 4 532 (43) 489
Linpairment 108865708 A88EL8.. ..o iosavimnissssnssmsmsmisinsnsusassasss 324 324 324 324
Increase in premises and equipment and intangible assets..... ¥z 218 1,489 20 1,510 1,510
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
2023
Reportable Segment
Banking Leasing Total Orther Toral Reconciliations  Consolidated
Ordinary income:
Ordinary income {rom external customers ........ccccocvcceee. $ 462,652 $ 64,038 $ 526,690 $ 21,523 § 548221 $§ (2,239)$ 545,982
Intersegment ordinary Income.asuainmnnin@bmgs 1,909 1,123 3,040 4,800 7,840 § (7,840)
TOMAL et D 404,562 $ 65,168 $ 520738 $ 26331 § 556,069 5 (10,087)% 545982
SETIENt PIOAE s 3 48835 $ 1415 % 50,250 $ 8,192 3% 58,451 § (59) % 58,383
S VT BREBTR  vissoa o S 32,229,064 171,661 32,400,726 149,689 32,550,415 (165,273) 32,385,141
Other:
DIEREECIAIBIE, &t s moes e s e 10,297 786 11,091 419 11,510 (4) 11,503
Total interest income. 322,242 89 322,332 8,432 330,772 (359) 330,405
Total interest expenses ..... 14,476 419 14,895 22 14,925 (284) 14,633
Impairment losses of assets................... SRR 20,856 1,100 21,965 247 22,212 3 22,204
Increase in premises and equipment and intangible assets..... 2,433 2,433 2,433 2,433

Notes: 1. The “Other” segment contains businesses that are not included in these reporting segments, such as the credit card business.
2. Adjustment amounts for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, were as follows:
(1) A downward reconciliation in ordinary income other than above of ¥299 million ($2,239 thousand) is made to adjust the gain on reversal of reserve lor loan losses for

the year ended March 31, 2023.

(2) Segment profit reconciliations of ¥8 million ($59 thousand) and ¥16million were made to eliminate intersegment transactions.
(3) A downward reconciliation in segment assets of ¥22,069 million (5165,273 thousand) and ¥21,363 million was made to eliminate intersegment transactions.

(4) A downward reconciliation in depreciation of ¥0 million ($4 thousand) and ¥1 million was made to eliminate intersegment transactions.

(5) A downward reconciliation in total interest income of ¥48 million ($359 thousand) and ¥48 million was made to eliminate intersegment transactions.

(6) A downward reconciliation in total interest expenses of ¥38 million ($284 thousand) and ¥43 million was made to eliminate intersegment transactions.

(7) A downward reconciliation in increase in premises and equipment and intangible assets of ¥0 million($3 thousand) was made Lo eliminate intersegment transactions

for the year ended March 31, 2023.
3. Segment profit is reflected as an adjustment to ordinary profit.

4. Ordinary profits, ordinary income and ordinary expenses are defined as follows:

“Ordinary profits” means “Ordinary income” less “Ordinary expenses.”

“Ordinary income” represents total income less certain special income included in other income in the accompanying consolidated statement of income for the years ended

March 31, 2023 and 2022.

“Ordinary expenses” represents total expenses less certain special expenses included in other expenses in the accompanying consolidated statement of income for the years

ended March 31, 2023 and 2022.
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(4) Matters regarding changes, elc. to the reporting segments

As disclosed in Note 2.5 “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Change
the Display Method,” in “Banking,” dividend income from group credit life
insurance, etc. which was previously included in “Other income” has been in-
cluded in “Fees and commissions” since the current consolidated fiscal year
and the segment information for the previous fiscal year has been reclassified.

Related Information
(1) Information by Services

Income regarding major service for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022,
was as follows:

e Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2023 2022 2023
Loan Businesses.............cccoeuu... ¥22.372 ¥20,859 $167,542
Securities Investment Businesses.. 28,627 15,809 214,386
Other oo, 21,905 18,851 164,045
1Y U ¥72.905 ¥55,520 $545.,982

Notes: As disclosed in Note 2.5 “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Change
the Display Method,” in “Banking,” dividend income from group credit life in-
surance, etc. which was previously included in “Other income” has been in-
cluded in “Fees and commissions” since the current consolidated fiscal year and
the segment information for the previous fiscal year has been reclassified.

(2) Geographical Information
(a) Ordinary income
Ordinary income from external domestic customers exceeded 90% of to-
tal ordinary income on the consolidated statement of income for the years
ended March 31, 2023 and 2022; therefore, geographical ordinary income
information is not presented.
(b) Premises and equipment
The balance of domestic premises and equipment exceeded 90% of total bal-
ance of premises and equipment in the consolidated balance sheet at March
31, 2023 and 2022; therefore, geographical premises and equipment infor-
mation is not presented.

(3) Major Customer Information

Ordinary income from a specific customer did not reach 10% of total ordinary
income in the consolidated statement of income for the years ended March 31,
2023 and 2022; therefore, major customer information is not presented.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions for the year ended March 31, 2022, were
as follows:

Transactions for  Balance at End

the Year of Year
Millions of Yen  Millions of Yen
Related Party Account Classification 2022 2022
Kunihiko Olkamura Loans and bills discounted ¥30 ¥29

Notes: 1. Kunihike Okamura retived on June 24, 2021, the balance at the end of the
month of retirement is indicated in place of the balance at the end of the period.

2, Terms are substantially the same as for similar transactions with third parties.

3. Amounts of transactions were reported at the average balance for the period.

There were no significant related party transactions for the year ended March
31,2023,

BB NET INCOME PER SHARE

Reconciliation of the differences between basic and diluted net income per
share (“EPS”) [or the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, was as [ollows:
Millions of Thousands of

Yen Sharas Yen U.S. Dollars
Net In .
Attributble  Weighted-
i Average EPS*
to Owners Shares*
Year Ended March 31, 2023 of the Parent
Basic EPS—Net income
available to common
shareholders...c.ocooeoiin ¥5.409 15,781 ¥342.76 $ 2.56
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock Option.......co.ccevecriens 93 (2.12) (0.01)
Diluted EPS—Net income
for computation .................... ¥5.409 15,879  ¥340.64 $ 2.55
Year Ended March 31, 2022
Basic EPS—Net income
available to common
shareholders....cccccoieeiiinn. ¥5,376 15,767  ¥340.96
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock Option 83 a.79
Diluted EPS—Net income
for computation .................... ¥5,376 15850  ¥339.17

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Appropriations of Retained Earnings

At the Bank’s general shareholders meeting held on June 22, 2023, the Bank’s
shareholders’ approved the following:

e Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
Year-end cash dividends, ¥50.0 ($0.37)
POTSHATE oocinesimimmnssromasssms ssssamsiorinsivveses ¥789 $5,908
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of THE OITA BANK, LTD.:
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of THE OITA BANK, LTD. and its consolidated
subsidiaries (the "Group"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2023, and the
consolidated statement of income, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, all
expressed in Japanese yen.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as of March 31, 2023, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

Convenience Translation

Our audit also comprehended the translation of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts and, in
our opinion, such translation has been made in accordance with the basis stated in Note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements. Such U.S. dollar amounts are presented solely for the convenience of
readers outside Japan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the provisions of the Code of Professional Ethics in Japan, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities as auditors. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

A key audit matter is a matter that, in our professional judgment, was of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. The matter was addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on the matter.

Calculation of Reserve for Loan Losses

The Group provides banking and other financial services primarily in Qita Prefecture. In the lending
business, which is the Group’s core banking business, there is a risk that the Group may incur a loss in
cases where all or part of a loan becomes uncollectible due to the debtor's credit events such as
bankruptcy. The reserve for loan losses is recorded for the portion where such a loss is expected. The
Group recorded the reserve for loan losses of ¥26,717 million on the consolidated balance sheet as of
March 31, 2023.

Member of

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited

THE OITA BANK, LTD.

The Group's accounting policy and calculation process of the reserve for loan losses are disclosed in
Note 2.j, "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Reserve for Loan Losses," to the consolidated
financial statements.

The reserve for loan losses is calculated on the basis of the debtor category, which is a significant
input in the estimates. Significant assumptions and judgments used in the determination of a debtor
category are disclosed in Note 3, "Significant Accounting Estimate.”

Key Audit Matter Description

The Group estimates the reserve for loan losses in accordance with the internal rules for write-offs
and provisions. The estimates include the determination of a debtor category based on the debtor's
financial position and results of operations, as well as its reasonable future business plan, the
valuation of the collateral pledged by the debtor, and the calculation of the actual past loss ratio
adjusted for the future outlook.

Specifically, the determination of a debtor category may depend on significant judgments regarding
the expected recovery of the debtor's financial performance in the future based on its business plan
if the debtor is facing financial difficulties and its performance is deteriorating.

In Oita Prefecture, effectively interest-free and unsecured loans with the deferment of principal
payment for certain periods have been provided to small and medium sized enterprises whose sales
have declined due to the COVID-19 pandemic. These repayments have started in sequence, and
there are certain debtors whose business conditions have deteriorated due to the impact of cost
increases caused by recent rising raw material and energy prices (hereinafter referred to as the
“Certain troubled debtors").

Regarding the determination of debtor categories for such Certain troubled debtors, future business
plans often include significant assumptions such as sales forecasts which are subject to the external
business environment and demand trends, including the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, and
cost reduction efforts which depend on the debtors' internal business environment.

Accordingly, as significant assumptions have high estimation uncertainty, the determination of
debtor categories involves significant judgments.

There is a potential risk that the reserve for loan losses may not be appropriately calculated if a
debtor category determined based on the debtor's future business plan does not appropriately reflect
the debtor's credit risk. Accordingly, we identified the determination of debtor categories for the
Certain troubled debtors, which involves significant assumptions used in their future business plans,
as a key audit matter.

How the Key Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

In order to address the key audit matter, we evaluated the effectiveness of the Group's controls over
the determination of debtor categories of the Certain troubled debtors and tested the
appropriateness of debtor categories based on the underlying information obtained.

We evaluated the effectiveness of the Group's contrals, including review and approval, over the
determination of debtor categories in accordance with the internal rules for write-offs and provisions.
We also evaluated the effectiveness of the Group's controls over the accuracy and completeness of
data, such as financial information about debtors, that was used in these internal controls.

In addition, for the Certain troubled debtors whose categories were highly dependent upon their
future business plans, we tested the appropriateness of the information about these debtors
underlying the determination of debtor categories. Also, we identified significant assumptions used in
their future business plans and evaluated the reasonableness of such assumptions by performing
the following:
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+ We evaluated the reasonableness of significant assumptions by comparing their business plans in
prior periods to the recent actual results and analyzing the factors of differences. Also, we
examined whether the factors of differences that needed to be reflected in the business plans for
the following period were appropriately reflected.

= We evaluated the feasibility of sales forecasts which are subject to the external business
environment and demand trends, including the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, by examining
the progress of measures to improve profits and comparing them to externally available
information.

* We evaluated that the impact of rising raw material and energy prices was fully reflected in their
business plans by examining the recent costs incurred.

+ We evaluated the feasibility of cost reduction efforts which depend on the debtors' internal
business environment by examining the recent costs incurred, the progress of such measures and
the ability for further cost reduction.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The Audit and Supervisory Committee is
responsible for overseeing the Directors' execution of duties relating to the design and operating
effectiveness of the controls over the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the ANNUAL REPORT, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Audit and Supervisory Committee for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit and Supervisory Committee is responsible for overseeing the Directors' execution of duties
relating to the design and operating effectiveness of the controls over the Group's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment. In addition, we obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain, when performing risk assessment procedures, an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

* Evaluate whether the overall presentation and disclosures of the consolidated financial statements are
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, as well as the overall
presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit and Supervisory Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit and Supervisory Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with it all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit and Supervisory Committee, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

THE OITA BANK, LTD.
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' March 31,2023
Millions of Yen %"%‘_ﬁggﬁzrzl
. 2023 2022 2023
Interest Required to Be Disclosed by the Certified Public Accountants Act of Japan - ASSETS:
|
Our firm and its designated engagement partners do not have any interest in the Group which is required Cash and due from banks 4 ¥ 725866 ¥ 942,567 $ 5,435,976
to be disclosed pursuant to the provisions of the Certified Public Accountants Act of Japan. CAlLTOANS .t 2,537 18,999
Cotnmiercial paper and. otherdebt puichased v mmmmamnmmvssamsmmssismia 3,310 3,476 24,788
Z = Money held in trust 3,991 16,931 29,888
\ﬂ 1, 4 ﬁ_ Z INVeStMent SECUTILES .......cvooviviiieecriineians ettt n et 1,392,387 1,291,928 10,427,521
1 E Leiatis. atid BHlE QI EOHIIE  ceuscnmsnmme st s S D R T Y S S i 2,098,204 1,978,279 15,713,352
Masayuki Masumura Foteigh, eXChANGE ASSELS....vmsrrssmemmsmzsses sssssmnmmrhssansesishsit s s s o RsR Lo e p e ss ey oSt e o s o 4,331 11,591 32,434
Designated Engagement Partner OUHET ASSEIS ..o e oo e e 42,980 26,194 321,875
Certified Public Accountant PLemmises and eqUIPIMENIL .........ccccccccovooorooeoeoooooooeeseesoere oo eeeeeeeooeoeeeoeeeee oo 29,403 28,037 220,197
TALANZIDIE ASSCLS ...t 573 746 4,291
PrE ATl IO SUOMIGIIEE warvusavsssasnasessiensoseisso sy i o s L8 b s 5 B 0 i 9,540 9,621 71,444
(=4 DILETTEA LAX ASSELS...-veoeo o ooeoeeeee oo oo ee oo seeeee e ee oo ee et e e et s et eeeeeee 9,140 3,360 68,449
Ken Miyazaki Customers’ liabilities for acceptances and gUATANIEES..........ocoiiiiiiiiiiciecc e 10,216 8,095 76,507
Designated Engagement Partner Reserve for loan losses ’ (23,963) (26,570) (179,457)
Certified Public Accountant T AL s i G o T e T R Y A Oy B I s ¥4,308,521 ¥4,294 259 $32,266,314
LIABILITIES:
De / ol f fe Tou C/l 4 Tﬂh ma 'fS‘ udLLc ot R SO —— ¥3555417  ¥3,472,306 $26,626,353
L TEVONEY i s s Mo 6 A A ST S5 AT RV PR S SRAEAAAT Ers08 3,671
July 31, 2023 Payables under repurchase agreements.............. 47,902 16,827 358,735
Payables under securities lending transactions 83,698 138,405 626,810
TR ISR ORI st 5 B4 A R AR SR BV S 383,027 421,102 2,868,471
Foreigh exthanie TabTHEES s i s s s s it 37 45 277
Other HaDILIES. ... ceeemiiiiie ettt 44,769 39,802 335,272
LA bt P T £ B BTIB TG o muicasssmcssssmnsnios o e S P S S G R 5 6,210 6,048 46,506
i Reserve for reimbursement of deposits ........ocoiiiiioiiiii e 879 1,116 6,582
Deferred tax liabilities for land revaluation eXeess ..........ocoooeiviicioeeee s 4,074 4174 30,509
Arceptances antl UAPATITRES s st ivissiosiss e v it o b s s e oivala it 10,216 8,005 76,507
TOA] HADTILIES ... ..ottt et 4,136,233 4,111,686 30,976,057
EQUITY:
Common stock- authorized, 30,000,000 shares; issued, 16,243,634 shares in
2023 A1 2022 1vveseeeeer et ee e eeee e es e 19,598 19,598 146,768
Capital SEPIIE. s s s s I S e O 10,582 10,582 79,248
Stock acquisition rights ... 246 220 1,842
Retained earnings:
Legal reserve 10,431 10,431 78,117
Unappropriated............... 128,856 124755 964,996
TR Pt S ATTIRIES v v 5 e 0 B S s B S o i 139,287 135,186 1,043,113
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities..........coooiiiiiniiiii (3,017) 9,079 (22,594)
Deferred gain (loss) on derivatives under hedge acCOUNUNE ...oovcviviiieee e (454) 1,673 (3,399)
Tanid e AT DT EERES o auviuviiimmies s s aoss o e it RS R S e 8,124 8,353 60,840
Treasury stock- at cost, 460,533 shares in 2023 and 469,710 shares in 2022 ... (2,078) (2,122) (15,562)
TOtAl BOUILY ..t 172,288 182,573 1,290,256
TOTAL...... A e A A g T T S TSR ¥4,308,521 ¥4,294,259 $32,266,314
Note: ;hlwunts stated in U.S. dollars are translated [rom Japanese yen, solely for convenience, at the rate of ¥133.53=U.S. §1, the approximate exchange rate prevailing at March
,2023.
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Summary of Nonconsolidated

Statement of Income (Unaudited)

THE OITA BANK, LTD.

Year Ended March 31, 2023
Millions of Yen T&tgxﬁgzﬁ;{;f
2023 2022 2023
INCOME:
Interest on:
Loans and discounts...........c.ocoecvvvvevvivireennnn ¥21,384 ¥19,834 $160,143
L 21,153 12,180 158,413
ONT .ottt ootk b ek et es e a et s s e e es st et ereenenn e 490 653 3,669
TOtal INLETESL IMCOITIE ..o e ettt ettt ettt een e 43,029 32,668 322,242
Pees and commissions . immannnmasaviisiiig 8,763 8,296 65,625
Other operating iNCOTNE ..ottt 5,518 1,899 41,324
Gain oitveversal ol reserve for Tomn TOBSEEL .o s s st S s S  Soa s 2,522 18,887
Gains on sales of stocks and other SeCUrTES. .......c.oioieiieeeee oo 1,950 1,711 14,603
OLher INCOIME ...ttt aeee e 923 461 6,912
TOE Al TEREOIR «rsnsssmmie o s s L e 2 e 5 e S B e s Sim 62,706 45,037 469,602
EXPENSES:
Interest on:
DIEPOSIES .euvureiii ittt b bt et e n s 187 252 1,400
BOTT OIS ATV T TSOOMIIIS 1 i im s iis st ivsominionssnssns osiashss s RSSO S0 15 9 112
L g TIr—— 1,730 208 12,955
Total INerest EXPETISES .......oveiiiieiiiiicie e a e s eaene s 1,933 470 14,476
Fees and COMMISSIONIS ...oueuviriee et eeeie e es e s s en s et st st s et eae s e eeneeeeeeesene 1,922 1,976 14,393
Oiher DPeTatinE EXPEIISES v s it i s e S S e nms s nmsars e s 24,479 8,813 183,322
General and adminiStralive EXPEISES . ....o.e.iri ittt e esen e 25,675 25,689 192,278
POVISTOTE O AT OB uuumenimmasinsmsinssnosmas s e s s 08 T S 2 S 805
Losses on sales of stocks and other SeCUTItes. ..........o.ooieiieiee e 538 386 4,029
Impairment losses on stocks and other SeCUTItes ...........cooceviiciiiiieiiicicce e 695 430 5,204
Impairment losses .. ., 325 324 2,433
T BHRPENGRE s i ivsivi s a e o s femm oo e e S5 S PSR A8 AR A s e A RS 410 281 3,070
TOUAL XPRIISES ...ttt et e et b et ettt 55,980 39,179 419,231
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES ......oooiiiiiiiiiiiee e srs s 6,726 5,858 50,370
INCOME TAXES:
R BIA onimnmgsemesnen s v o b R G A A T A ST 0E 1,159 1421 8,679
D 5 1 T 410 (223) 3,070
TOTAl INCOTIIE TAXES. ...ooeeeeee et ee et et e s e 1,569 1,198 11,750
NET INCOME ....cxcovnmiisimisiisimsaianivascros ¥ 5,156 ¥4,659 $ 38,613
Yen U.S. Dollars
PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK:
BaSiC ML INCOMIE. 1.cviisirii ettt ettt n s ene e ree s b s ¥326.77 ¥205.53 $ 244
T U T I s o 0 R A AR S T 324.75 203.98 2.43
Gashidividerids applicableito The Fear.u. s amisssimm e s i i e i s rormnsaspanes 90.00 80.00 0.67
Note: Amounts stated in U.S. dollars are translated from Japanese yen, solely for convenience, at the rate of ¥133.53=U.5. $1, the approximate exchange rate prevailing at March
31, 2023.

32 | THE OITA BANK, LTD.

THE OITA BANK, LTD.
Year Ended March 31, 2023

Summary of Nonconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Unaudited)

Thousands Millions of Yen
Ouistanding Retained Eamings Unrealized  Deferred Gain
Number of Gain (Loss)  (Loss) on
Shares of Stock on Available-  Derivatives Land
Common Common Capital  Acquisition Legal Unappropri-  for-sale  underHedge Revaluation  Treasury Toual
Stock Stock Surplus Rights Reserve ated Securities  Accounting Excess Stock Equity
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2021
(APRIL 1, 2021, as previously reported) 15,745 ¥19,598  ¥10,385 ¥266  ¥10431 ¥121,085  ¥18,000 ¥ 471 ¥8,604  ¥(2,254) Y186,848
Cumulative effect of accounting change 0 )]
BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2021 (as restated) 15,745 19,598 10,585 266 10,431 121,084 18,000 471 8,664 (2,254) 186,848
Net income 4,659 4,659
Cash dividends, ¥80.00 per share (1,260) (1,260)
Purchase of treasury stock n 2 (2)
Disposal of treasury stock 29 (41) 135 03
Transfer [rom land revaluation excess 310 310
Transfer from retained earnings (o
capital surplus 38 (38
Net change in the year (43 (89200 1202 (310) (8,075)
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2022 15,773 19,598 10,582 220 10,431 124,755 9,079 1,673 8,353 (2,122) 182573
Net income 5,156 5,156
Cash dividends, ¥80.00 per share (1,262) (1,262)
Purchase of treasury stock (0) 1 (0]
Disposal of treasury stock 10 (22) 45 22
Transfer [rom land revaluation excess 228 228
Transfer from retained earnings to
capital surplus 2 22)
Net change in the year 25 (12,097)  (2,128) (228 (14.429)
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2023 15,783 ¥19598  ¥10,582 ¥246  ¥10,431 Y128.856 ¥ (3,017) ¥ (454) ¥8124  ¥(2,078) ¥172288
Thousands of US. Dollars
Retained Famings Unrealized Deferred Gain
Guin (Loss)  (Loss)on
Stock on Available-  Derivatives Land
Common Capital Acquisition Legal Unappropri-  for-sale  under Hedge Revaluation  Treasury Total
Stock Surplus Rights Reserve ated Securities  Accounting Excess Stock Equity
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2022 §146,768 $79,248 $§1,647 $78,117  $934,284 $67,992 §12,59  §62,555  $(15,891) $1,367,280
Net income 38,613 38,613
Cash dividends, $0.59 per share (9,431) (9,451
Purchase of treasury stock )] (M
Disposal of treasury stock (164) 337 164
Transfer from land revaluation excess 1,707 1,707
Transfer from retained earnings o
capital surplus 164 (164}
Net change in the year 187 (90,583 (15.936) (1,707) (108,058)
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2023 $146,768 §79,248 §1.842 S78,117  $964.996 $22594)  § (3.399)  §60,840 $(15,562) $1,290,256

Note: Amounts stated in U.S. dollars are translated from Japanese yen, solely for convenience, at the rate of ¥133.33=U 8. $1, the approximate exchange rate prevailing at March

31, 2023.
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CORPORATE DATA

HEAD OFFICE
4-1, Funaimachi 3-chome, Qita 870-0021
Telephone: (097) 534-1111

INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS OFFICE
4-1, Funaimachi 3-chome, Oita 870-0021
Telephone: (097) 538-7513

Fax: (097) 536-7071

Swift; OITA JPJT

Hong Kong Representative Office
Room 1108, 11/F, The Metropolis Tower,
10 Metropolis Drive, Hung Hom,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone: 852-2522-8862

Fax: 852-2522-7298

FOREIGN EXCHANGE OFFICES
Main Office

4-1, Funaimachi 3-chome, Oita 870-0021
Telephone: (097) 534-1111

Osaka Branch

8-7, Hiranomachi 1-chome,
Chuo-ku, Osaka 541-0046
Telephone: (06) 6231-6067

Saiki Branch

2-7, Jyokanishimachi,
Saiki, Oita 876-0847
Telephone: (0972) 22-3311

Tokyo Branch

3-4, Nihonbashi 2-chome,
Chuo-ku, Tokyo 103-0027
Telephone: (03) 3273-0081

Fukuoka Branch

10-10, Kamigofukumachi,
Hakata-ku, Fukuoka 812-0036
Telephone: (092) 281-4381

Kokura Branch

1-21, Komemachi 1-chome,
Kokurakita-ku, Kita-Kyusyu 802-0003
Telephone: (093) 521-8336

Beppu Branch

18-21, Noguchinakamachi,
Beppu, Oita 874-0932
Telephone: (0977) 21-2121

Nakatsu Branch

2-10, Toyodamachi,
Nakatsu, Qita 871-0058
Telephone: (0979) 24-2211

Tsurusaki Branch

1-12, Minami-Tsurusaki 3-chome,
Oita 870-0104

Telephone: (097) 527-2121

Hita Branch

1-2, Sanbonmatsu 1-chome,
Hita, Oita 877-0016
Telephone: (0973) 23-2101

NUMBER OF MONEY EXCHANGE OFFICES
33

NUMBER OF OFFICES BY DISTRICT

DA PHEfEEEiNe ooz B2
Miyazald Prefectite .ot 2
Kumamoto Prefecture ...........ccccooveveeeeeicnnn. 1
Fukuoka Prefecture ..........cccceciiiiciiiiiice. 6
OSAKA oo 1

TOMHG sicsoesssscssnmspmsnssm o onrssi s it he b 1

Total ...

(As of September 30, 2023)

MEMO

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

President Outside Director Outside Audit and Executive Officers
Tomiichiro Goto Hisatsugu Wada Supervisory Committee Members  Katsuhiko Ueki
Mitsuo Kawano Norio Hamada
Senior Managing Directors Full-time Audit and Sachiko Oro Noriyuki Nakama
Yasuhide Takahashi Supervisory Committee Members Akiko Yamamoto Yuji Watanabe
Masayuki Sagara Hideki Takahashi
Managing Directors Hiroyuki Hirakawa Managing Executive Officers Masanobu Miura
Nobuhiko Okamatsu Yu Tkeda
Hiroaki Shimonomura Hideki Nagamatsu (As of June 30, 2023)

Yasunori Sato
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